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Sales mix
BlLS%

2007

From the Staterment of Operations

Met revenues
Cross profit
EBITOA,

Consolidated nat [loss) incomse

EPS [pesos)

Dividends per share [pesos)

518220
3,742
2068
1272
212
059

Total shares outsianding [thousands] 600,000 &00,

From the Balance

Cash and equivalents
Dietst, roet

Tolal assets

Total Habidlities

Total stockholder's equaty

ROE"
rROA™

£3.040 95
1o 626
19116 19455
3589 5376
15127 14,079

B4% 6.3)%
L5 W4 &.61%

2009

2009

$23263

3,936
2,076
809
135
0.42

600,000

$ 255|

D64
19.878
5239
14,639

55%
4.1%
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Dear Shareholderns,

I s my plessirs o inform you abowr che Commpany's
fedulin o istéwant MEksr el ooourted duing Frucal
year 20T

201 was one o the most challenging years for the pouling
industry in general and for o Compdiny i paricular,
Severnl extermal condilierrs  negelively afecied Dur
operating results

Price mcresaes in gradns and soybean meal jou main sw
materislsf both In e domesic shd inteinafional
maarkels, and the voiatiity in the axciange rate mainly
s the end of the yese, wees ey faciors thal negs-
tivedy Impacted o pIoduction cosTs

Fu slowly growtn in the Mesican economy and oceersupply
conditions in chiclhen and egg market during most of e
year, did not aliceyed 1 (o Fully oansfer the increases in
ouF production coss nlo (vices, and cormequenily, we
had a slight cperating come of Ps 10 million We endaxd
ihe yesr with EBITOA of Ps. 730 millicn 2nd 3 nes mearse
al Pe 159 million, equivalent to $0 J7 pesos per shate

Even under these circumsiances, we registered recod
sales in pesos and dollars in the history of the Compaay,
for the first time, we sold over a million 1ons of chicken,
meaching [ofal sales of P 27735 millen pesos [Iw
squivalant to 2210 billlon dofizs), 12 7E more than salesin
2010

I 200, v achiewed record productivty indeses in differ-
i stages of pur production piooess, due (o constaEnt
sunenvision, gssessmen 3nd ponrol thereof We will
continues o mplement diverse progects that will aliow Js
not gl 1o mashiain, but (e oonsstently mproee B oour
productive indeses and B guality of our productks

We are esrabliuhing 2 merel ofenElion, we pUrsUe D
alwinys offer the bt sevvioe (0 our clienis, guaranieeg o
consiant Supply, gusiiy amd price

Im 20001, we mads o aoosedions, which have bean
integraied 1o the rewl of the Company The first wes e
acgursition of Trosi de Cames, 54 de OV business,
locsied in Monsrey, in the s of Nuevo Leon This
SCLLISITHON alowed ws b0 INCesss oo Maieer share in MHe
vilue-added indumiry, pacticulerty with beef products

The second souwisiion of 2001, slowed us o erer in e
LS pouwltry reanieed For the firsg time Bachoco soguined e
casmipay O K indumtries, Irne 15 Movernbses 0010, wilh reln
offices in Fort Smith, Arkansas. With this acguisition we
seefy (o paricipare, and in the funure o grow, in the largest
poultry markvet bn the workd

Messa?
to Shareholders

Ap thee end 5f the 2010, we penesed 25305 dae jobs
In Mexlco @nd the LS, with wihich we have good |25m
rlathors

Adverse conditions in 200 had smengthened and
midihaied s o reinfioe o efons in 2083 1 ey
ngw Orews of opporiunily and capifalipe them in
benefits for the Compsany

I SO0, we will celebrate the Company’s G0N snniver-
sary and 15 yeers 8% @ publc comrpany Doding in the
Mexlcan and New York Stoch Bchanges

| very provd o be paet of Beschoro's grosh snd
supcess The Company has developed o the poing of
becoming an integrated company, 3 leader i Mesioo's
pouliry ndustry and one of (e most Moo= pouloy
campanies worldwide. The BACHDCD brand |8 presti-
ghous and s well recognized due 0 s gualily and
freshness

We will conginue with 2 COnSIEn paie n e Weacen
peitry ndustny snd we U thal I D upoming
years, we will consoijdate owr position in the US and
B[O Markers

Likee each jear, | want (o concludes thanting af our
empioyees and ow senkon management eam o e
wort peffommed, and o ow Sharsholders e the
Fuppoar: and oSt gren in the Company Ve ae conhi-
derid [hat IO will bring gres cppoftunites fof
Bachoco

Frioncisen kvier B Boaars Cimdivfin
ke of e Bnard of Deeoors

Bachoco.
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Enrigua Robinson Bours Almada



» Our History

50’ s: Bachoco was founded in 1952 by the Robin-
son Bours fFamily as a small commercial table =0a
operation in the state of Sonora

&0's: In 193, stared the expansion of the
Company's facilites through by acquinng addi-
thanal Facilities froem other pouiiny producers i the
cities of Mavoioa, Sonofa, Los Mochis and
L uiliant ar

70's: Bachoco commenced the production of
chicken in the opewmsiion faoiity in the cty of
Culiacan, in 197% established a new complex in
Celaya city

BO’s: The Company opened a dstribution center
it México City, and productive feclites in San Luis
Potoe=l

90's: in 1993, Bachoco moved out hesdguaners
from the Obregon o Celaya city, and opensd 3 new
complex in the Southeast of Medoo, arer in 15
the Company opensd a new complex, this tme in
[Fie WY ESIeTm Feghon of Meéwico

In September 1997, the Company began rading on
the hMexican and Mew Yorir Eichanges

Furthermaore, in December 199%, the Company
acquired Campl.  With this acguisition
Bachoro enteded a new bisness line

seling balanced feed o third

parties

Bachoco.

60 years

Iht
00’'s: In 2001, Bachoco established it sixth com-
piex in Comez Pelacio city, located in the Normtheast
of Mexco, In 2005, the Company opensd & new
complex 8 the Peninsuia of YiEatan and in 2007
ofe more in Veracruz, Fermiosifho and Monterey

In 2008, the Company successfully yunched
Bachoco's new image, wiich was well-jeceived by
its cliends

In 20059, Bachoco consolidates its presence in the
Mortheast of Medico through dverze businecs
agreements wirh companies locared in that region
The Company aiso staned with minos expoins o
Asia

In 2001, the Company camyoul Wo ScouisHinns
First it acquired a valse-aoded beef plant located in
Monterrey, Musvo Leon in MNorthem Mexico, Later
in same 2011, the Company enterad the US. markel
with the acqguisition of the LS polltry company,
Q< Indusines, Inc
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In 201, Mexican economy grew 39K and in
gerral, the scenana wik uncenain caused by high
volitility in the economy worldeade. The Mexican
peso emaimed especially volable iowargs ihe end of
the year, ending with a deprecation of (200 with
respect o the US dollsr, while inflabon s in
Mexico was 38X

Pursuant o the Unidn Macionzl de Awviculiores en
México (Mational Association of Pouliry Farmers in
Mexico) during 2011, wolume of chiclen produced in
Mexico grew 34K and s CONSUMPOON per Capita
was 2546 kilograms Addinonzlly, commercial egg
production grew 2 5% and §5 consumplion per C3piE
was 224 Rilograms of eggs per year.

In general, the poulry industry and consaquenidy,
Bachoco, continued expermmenting high produceon
costs dunng the engire 2011 fscad year, caused mamly
by the high tost of rew maleTiss

ket sales ol ithe Compamy for the 300 bsral e
increased L2 FL with respect to the pnor year, resul-
ting in the highest sakes billed in the history of the
Company.

The chichen prodicis bns, the Companmy’'s main
spurce of income, was mareed by an oversupply
durirey mosi of 200, wh an imponand  reCovery
towards the end of the year Mevestheless it was
mstfficeent 1o revert the negsine resulls reconded
during most of the year

Eaport sales over the Company's oial saes e il
les=er represenlative, however, a TOX incresse ovel
the export sales of The prios friscal yeor wars recorded,

I Mendeo, the Company expanced its nabonal cover-
age by cpening three distibtion cenders located in
ihe state of Baja Califigrrda Suw

Wie are an important source of employment AL the
clesing of the 200 fscal year, we had provided more
than 25,300 direct jobs, most of them in kexico. AL
Bachoco, we believe in our personnel’s permanence
and development We have highly speclslired snd
qualified employees in (et different work oreas,
which gives us confidence and mesulls In high
prodisciivny i our proCesses

CEQO's
Letter

2011 amd 20010

Results

The Company’s net sales for iscal year 201 ioisled
Ps, 27735 millian, 22% move than the sales iegrs-
temd n 2000, as b resull of 26X Incredse in prices
and 0% incresss in the volume sold

Chichen products sales increased .2 durmng 201
as & resull of a 29% pice morease and @ 90X
volume nregse. The incre=se I volume s maindy
due to g greater procuction resulting from the aooui-
sition of the LLS. operation.

Comrmaicial eggs sabes decrrassed 05X during e
L01 Fscal year, althowgh the pnce increased S
however, valume sold decreased 600 In 2001, the
productive capacity i the Memczl opeanon was
almost totally restored, wihich had been lost cum o
the April 2010 earthguake that affected the faams of
this regkon and cavsed commercial egg sales
valume [0 decrease.

Balanced feed sales, conducned wnder the AN
brand, had an increase of 34 FK in cthe 2000 fiscal
wear, 5 & result of an morease of 140X m ssles
prices and 57X in volume sold This sscoweny
comes afier & couplez of yess of significant
INEreases n IS proguctive cosis.



Clrhaer Deising Nal T e COrripaadyy INCiuoE. Ive See 53086 Sales of value smided rnarkeey and Deel i L

o
ang ot by -produc s N s respedct i miprant o paint out the Sagn

HWETCE @l (e INCrease 1IN (e Procuciive C:

= o thee 200 fecad year was Ps. 2,862 milliom, with a gross margin of 10.7% This represented a2
pared (o the preveous year, dis malnhy to the high production costs thal could not be

tansferred o the sabe prces

Bachooo recorded an operating profit of Ps. 10 million i the closing of 2001, a significant confachion compand
with the operanng income of 2000 of Ps. 2 4663 million, The opamization of prodeciion indexes, genezl expense

CORIMOI and COMNSOETansEe INnCTeases nel sales of he Can Ry, WENE ITISUMCETE | UM ETE WE ihe

Thee resiil of the EGTT DU (o 2000 was Ps. 736 milllon, which represented & reduction of 7678 compared (O the
P ] 158 milbice I T o i 3 i

Thie Comprabensiee fnancial resull for 2000 was a profi Ps. (78 millon This result s comparable wich a profin of
Ps 122 million chtzined in 2000, Both res are due prcipally to interest income and exchange rare gains
The total taxes for the 2011 fscal year were a beneht of Ps. 40 million. This resulted from income laxes of Ps. 70

million, cffset by defemed taxes of Ps. 110D million. This information is comparable with total taxes of Ps

mildlien in 000, 35 a resull of come iades of P S86 milllon, partizily offsel by delfermed ooes of F= 8 mullich

All off thee DorecHing e MDY 10 FRCDITE0 & s Comar .I rareet incarrae of P 159 rall
BET Share ] Wik eprevenied & sonifcani decrease Wil feSpech 1o & NELMaaniy mooime reporie 0] f

Ps. 1,984 million [Ps. 331 per shae




Cash ivestmenis as of December 31, 200, iotaled
Ps. 3,036 million, & decease of 27 3% wilh respect 1o
the Pa. 4 177 million in cash repomed o1 the closing o
e 2010 Ascal year. The decrease I5 oue mainly o
cash used (o inCrease the worling caplial and
paymemn af the acqusitions camed ocut in 2001

Oebt in 201 ioialed P= 1 B37 million, an imporani
ircrease with resped to the Ps 64T milleon reposted
ot the closing of the 2000 fecal year. This was due
mainly to increased shom-fem USSERS million debi
Even with this added debe, the Company Beeds a very
solld Rnandcial posEnon

Laszly, in 20ll, capital invesimends toieled Ps 66)
millicn, which weee psic with the Company's
and replacement of rarsportatkon Meet

Outlook

We truest that 2002 will be & year of recovery in
erms of operanng resuls for the Compary. We wall
Connnue INMEEanng our new operanons. We &
working hard (o implement produc maty snd cooiding-
tlon projects o ensure the oushty. supply and
=sustainability of the busines=.

We will continue training ous worting team and we will
also heep updating ouwr Facilities of the thythm
reguirad by i industny and our pIoCesses. S0 We Tan
always e al the foreffont and ensuee the leadership
that charactefizes aur Company.

?120«@«/
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Report from

the Board of Directors

Ag Chairman of the Board of Dwectors of Incusimas Bachoco, SAR die W,
and pursuant provissons of Secnon IV of Amcde 28 of De Secuntes Marlwer
Lawy, | heretry niforrm you of the following

This Board of Directors has spproved the CED's repon which supports the
performance of the management during fscal year 2001, based on the
incependent audiior's opinion

Thi= Board considers that the CED s repoit reasonably reflece= the financlal
positon and operating results of the Company and that |0 was prepamed in
accordance with Mexican Francial informaton Siandards [MEX GAAR)
Policies, accounding and repoiong prncipies foliowed 1y the Company &e
adequate and consisien with the audited Bnancial staements attachead o
this annual report

Additianally, the Company was insiructed by the Boare (o sictly adhere to
general Bccounting prnciples scoepted in Meoco i connection with  [he
preparsion of Bnend el seavements, which were enforced (o the awdined Rnan
il SEarEmeTis.

Puring this period, the Company &g ot engaget n wusual operations or
other aciivities different from s normial operations. No exemptions were
granted i any member of the Board, exeoiive oficer orany ather member off
the Company 16 tabe advantage of business opporunitos for themsehes af
iy Faver aff thied panmses

Atrxched to this report, the Board presents 1o the Amnuil Ordinery Sharehol-
ders’ Meeting the report of the Auwditing and Corporate Practices Cammintes,
the CECYs report, the reporni on prompt compliance with [ax obligations and
the report on the principal sccoamiling and Information policies and criteria
lollowed by the Company in the prepaiation of b= finsncid] siatemerits for
hecal yead 2001

Frondern lovier R Bours Costelo
(ravirmman & e foand of Dieegon

Bachoco.
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Corporate
Governance

Bachooo stricthy follows the Pringiples of Corporate Best Practes propased by the Mecan Stock Bxchange 1o obssrve &
Giood Corporate Governance.

Bachoros Board af: Dwectors o compnsed of esght propreeiary  sharehalders directors, four alternaie sharenoldens
diréctors, three independent proprietsry divectors and ane rdated propristary directos, Thiz board was last ratified on
April 37, 2017, The Board's ran duties mciude the follkowng:

« Dewrmine policies, genessl wrategees, and 1he orpanizmuon nd mansgemeant Ccriterla thar gusde the actvites of the
Company.

« Prepare-and devslop programs to opiimeze rescultes management and the opsration of the business, such 35 budgeis
and financial planning

& After considering the Auditing and Corporate Practices Commictes’s opmion, appeove the internal controd and guidesnes
ol the imtermal suditing of the Comgany,

» Authoriie scquisitions or diposing. a3 well o the granting of guarantess or the taking of llabiies fior & valoe egual 1o o
higher than five per cent of the comalidated atiets of the Company, except for Investments in debt seourithes or bank
instruments, provided such are made in accosdance with the pallcies approved by the Board for such purpesss.

« Raview and authonze operaimg raast and work plang, and the overall compensation of the Company’s senior officers

Additonaily, Bachooo has an Auditing and Corporats Practices Commitiee to support the Board of Direciors, which is
composed of three independent directors and one internal director. This Committes wastast ratified on Apeil 27, 2011 and
ity main duties inchude:

¢ Evaluate the performance of the independent auditing fim. a: well a3 analyze their opinion, recommendaliond. reports
and ather information,

* Prepans and present | to e Board, an opinion as about the CEQ'S report, and advise the Board of Disectors in the prepars-
tion of reports regarding policiss and aocounting principles and other criteria followed in the preperstion of financal
siatements, as well as on the operation: and activities | has padcipated.

= Provide an opinion meganding o the tramactions with relsted persons.

*Ermure that relevant or umsaal ransactions have followed theCompany's authorized policies.

#Propose the hiring of independent specialisis in the casss il desms advisable
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Audit Committee
and Corporate

[’ractices

Dear members of the Boarnd and Sharehalders of Indusiia: Bachaco, SAR de OV K ks my pleasure (0 inflom
you of the activities performed by this Committes during fscal year 2011

Regarding (o Corporate Pracices, | hereby report the following:

*\\e determined thet, (he performance of the Company’s Off cers was conaksient with the estabiished worky plan
arsl that the projecied expecialong and gusdslines were mil,

=We reviewed Lthe compensaton paciage of the TED and oner Executive Offcers

=l\e verified that the Company did not grant any exempuams w s Directors, Execunive Officers or amy odher
employes of the Compary

=W meticulously reviswed the rarsaciions camied out withrelabed partles and conchided thery vere conducted
in mariel eoms. The sl ransactons wilh related panies represanted less than 300 of the Compeay's net
sales

Regarding (o Audit Practices, | herety report the Following:

=We issued a recomemendation for the appoinimen and hirng of external auditors o perform the 2011 el yea
Audl Prioe 1o mabing such recommendsion, s srmursd e iclependence al duch auditors and sibasguently
aralyeed the work progrem Droposed

=We supernvised compiiance by the extemat audinng Frm and the completion of the exiemal gudic, we evaduated
thee results thereofl and the perfomance of the =aemna| auciior, and concluded thatl the semvices provided were
CONGISLENL with the condithons of the agresment exsculed with the sxternal auditing Flirm

=\e revetwed the snelyies processes and obsenalomns ol external audiors wihike emsunng Lhey were made
objecthely, in order o provide prompd and refiable imanciafinformartion,

=We anatyzed the sudeed iinanca! staemenes, the suditing epor and the accouniing polices used dunng frsca!
year J0N in the Company and (he legal entities conlrolied by ii.As part af the evaluathon of the sxtemal auditing
firrn, certain varalions were detecied n conmection with the non-awdived, quaierly inforrmation pubdshed and
concluded that such varisiions e mainly due o reclassiiications

= We reviewed and decwssed the sheenvanons of the suditing firm and as a8 result thereol, recommended o the

=Board of Directorns appaoving (he audited financiz stetemments (o present them in the Annugal Oedinany
Sharehalders’ Meeting

* We made proposals (o the Board retating o the bases on which to prepare and disclose financial information,
generad guidelines =nd the mplemencation of imema! connod measures, 2s well as with respect o the 3cooun-
ting procedures. that the Company mest follow

=We perindically reviewesd the efMfciency of inernal controls and internal awditing controls and did not delect sy
material deviations
We analyzed and assessed the sddnional or supplemendan senvices provided by the exrermal audiing Fem, as

wwall a8 ose provided Dy oeGendenl expels

s\Ve reviewed and analyoed the repont of he Board with espect o the Company's corporaie sijuaiion and
verified fiollow-ug of the resolutions adopied by the Shareheiders’ Meeting and the Board of Cireciors

= e vaiidared the sfficiency end conginuicy of the mechanisms (o recelve 3nd deal with claims in comneczion weath
Bccounting and iniemal controbs. During fiscal year 201, norelévant obsenvations were receied from sharehol-
ders, disectorns, rebevant offsters of sy thisd panty genetally

e

Fefipardo Gastdum Foillx

Peeciseny of P Al anef Cokipeite Praices Commilies
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Indapendent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Industrias Bachoco, 5.A.8. de C.V.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Industrias
Bachoco, 5.4.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, and
the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders” eguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2011, These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility s to

express an opinion an these consolidated financial statements based on owr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States) and with auditing standards generally accepted in Mexico.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An awdit also includes assessing the accounting principles wsed and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financal position of Industrias Bachocoo, 5.4A.8. de C.V, and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2010 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year pericd ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with

Wexican Financial Reporting Standards.

As mentioned in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on November 1, 2011 the
Company acquired 100% of the voting stock of OK Industries, Inc. {which owns five consolidated
subsidiaries). OK Industries, Inc. operates and s located in the United States of America. The
results of operation of the acquired subsidiary are included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements from such date.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, new and revised Mexican

Fimancial Reporting Standards were adopted in 2011, with prospective or retrospective
application, being specified in each case.

Dur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion expressed in the third paragraph
above. The supplementary information related ta the translation of the financial position as of
December 31, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the
yvear then ended from Mexican pesos into United States dollars in accordance with the basis

described in note 2{aa) and prepared under the responsibility of the Company's management, is



presented solely for convenience of the reader, and it is not reguired for the interpretation of
the consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, such additional information is fairly stated
i all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements.

MWexican Financial Reporting Standards vary in certain significant respects from generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Information relating to the
nature and effect of such differences is presented in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), Industrias Bachocoa, 5. A, B. de C. V.'s internal contral over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, basad an criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committes of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (CO50), and our report dated April 30, 2012 expressed an ungualified opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting

Oueretarn, Mexico
April 30, 2012

By S/ Demetrio Villa Michel
KPFMG, Cardenas Daosal, 5.0

21



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

INDUSTRIAS BACHOCD, 5.4.8. DE CV. AND SUBSIDIARIES
December 31, 2010 and 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Income

INDUSTRIAS BACHOCO, 5.A.B. DECV. AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011

Ml pevimides

Cost of aales (node ob

Ciross profil
Bellmg, pencral and sdmammiralive sdpenss {niols G

Diperating ineome
Chher cxpenss, nid Cnode 200

Comprehonsive financial resulis:
Intered income
Valualwem cflicts of Tinameia] mefrumeants (mede 13)
Interest and finsseial cop
Mt ateresl incoime and valiaton effiscls
ol financial instrumenis
Forgign exchangs (loss) gan, net

Comprebensive faancial resulis, sl

Incoms hefons income Lawes,
and n-comtralling larcsl

Irvcome tas expense | benelily imote 194
Ml comrsalidals] mcome

Wetl comtrolling inlerest income
Hon-controlling inlarel incomes

Ciommoladated nel oo
Weighted meraps cutstamding (shares in themansd)

el moome per share

o peonemnievine sodes in cnmendiilaled finencil sissmesis

(T hinisznds ol

LS dallars)

inobe Zpa)
LI, L] RN ik

13, 202 &S50 TIN5 4% 27,7345 1,145,325
| 15,506, TA5) i 1AL TT) (24, TTE 2L {1, TTEILSS
30560401 52047 2,961.774 1@
2322 10| 2.T51,7R2 2,051 857 11303
1,413 5} 24627 5T T
(RN ] {75,315) M ] (45345

1 ML655 165 ks 193,777 12571
1T 130 13,850 [ LS
(91.300) {73,514} T4 (A54T)
[ B i 1177 125137 HELS
[37.90:4) 1 LE2 e L) LA
[N ] 1234 177642 1L717
1215403 ZAET 4] 1 18,50 HAH]
41 2158 S 415 I:i.l_ﬂl._l‘a !E‘:‘H!
RIFLS [ ] 159, 13% 11,31
TUT ) 1503 550 127801 11241
114415 107 L] 130
RIFLO S 1 280, 536 154,138 11,341
L] RO LBl feHL ]
1.35 i3] 827 LA

23



FPESENR PR | e ey 4 e Andimal s o

T [l LA s Lo THILs] 19 TIR T BLIFsl TaLFRL LIBFRE'T & (I
LT LT Le iRl Y Ll

ST 5TIL : : - - : - -
[P - GEngh - - Il - -
iznal e . - . i B )

[ Gy T - I ERTh - IR RGTI - -

- - - (I e el IEEEAE - -
FETRIE T 1o FEC¥TN [Siweiyl LEWEETTD BTSN =19 4y LIEFST'T TS
OTE R L WAL R TRG 1 _q__.u.:.....&..l_ = - = =
(KT - T - - 1% 1] - - -
ISELLF ISELL " - . . ~
IZRIHTI - ROy - ZROET) - - - -

) - . IV R A L1y - "

Lo o T o [Zi=git | (LR TP GBI 1650 [ g | TEd i JTEPAL B TR
S arell R LE (RPN - - - - -
ALl = S = = ALl =
1581 L L1 - - - - - . -
ISFIHT! = L, sl = VeI = =
E - E FHITLE R R) - - - -
53 [T e ol BhLGE 09 ST L I3FIaLa: CHCLL aFesl FLOERL LTaTEI T B O0dmoa
wmmha el I agnha gH APy P T I R - e Hugs [T L
AEPEE UL B O] EESTTTE [T ST alg [ feang) AT o g ad L=y e Y
|FE By y [EEETALE ELRTIT] EEIVE= Pl
AnpE D) iy R
I 1y JLEELL

VIOE "I g Jjimicas]] g sr vaaim| ey

6] A0 RN | ) e )
{1 How) reassgem By pugens-usn posmbay
(PR 18U sams o wegnmday
Fetaaga) duyy aj e spuapasp )
(g% wmu} prd spuapasip qee;)

g ey ue

Play Semiaam SR O HIE D
B i 6] doidd o dgeuien )
0T £ S o 58 s

(97 BACAL ST, 10 1 0O B Ryl mD )
[ ] samraps [ seripandyg
1502w B ourEn - oo predd spuaHap e
(2] SO0 pied BPUBp LA )

nHE Fy un

Y P A S0 U0
ERTE] MU0 1R B AT s o mpm |
ST 1§ EUEST 0 5T e

[ L TR D R B TE e T .....__.sn_..-_uL_E:._
(PRI U] sy jo seripndey
[LETEI H.;::L_.Tr_-_........ﬂ:_-ﬂ.j._.__.__u.._
{iga | Mou pred spuspup ye

Ty uo

P PR Seppamsun
i) oy 6 A SO o I |
BN |E-BUROe] |0 B ey

TTOZ PUE OTOT "600T 'TE Jaquadag
S3IYYIAISANS ANY "A'D 30 "8'Y'S '0D0HIYE SYIYLSNANI

Aynb3 ;sJep|oyxo0)s JO sjusLUB}e)lS Pajepl|osucD

24



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

INDUSTRIAS BACHOCOD, 5.A.8. DE TV, AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011
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NOTES to the Financial Statements

(1) Organization, business activity and significant transactions-

Organization and business activity-

Industrias Bachoco, 54 B. de CV. and subsidiaries ([collectively referred to as "Bachoco” or the
*Company™) a public stock corporation with variable capital was incorporated on February 8, 1980 and it
is engaged In breeding, processing and marketing of poultry (chicken and eggs], swine and other products
{principally balanced animal feed). Bachoco is the controlling company of & group of subsidiaries.

The shares of Bachocs are lsted on the Mexican Steck Exchange (MSE] an the Mew York Stock Exchange
{MYSE), under the symbol “IBA",

O April 19, 2012, Bachooo's Finance Director and Controller Director authorized the issuance of the
Consolidated Mexican Financlal Reparting Standarcs (Mexican FRS) financlal statements and notes at
December 31, 2000 and 2011 and each of the thres years then ended. The accompanying US Gaal
disclosures are presented in note 23. These consolidated financial statements were authorized for
issuance herein by Bachoco's Financial Director and Controller Director on April 30, 2012 with
consideration of subsequent events through that datz

Significant transactions-

OK Industries acquisition

On Movember 1, 2011, the Company acquired 100°% percent of the voting stock of OF Industries, Inc. and
subsidianies [Acguired Entity). Income of the Acguired Entity has been induded in the consolidated
financial staternents from such date, The Acquired Entity |5 engaged in breeding, processing and
marketing of poultry (chiken) to supplier autoservices networks, fast food networks and others in the LS
and foreing markets, The aggregate purchase price that was paid in cash amounted 93.4 million U5D0,

A5 of December 31, 2011 Bachoco was in the process of allocating the fair values to the assets acguired
and liabilities assumed. In accordance with Mexican Finandal Reporting Standard (Mex FRS) B-7 "Business
acquisition”, the wvaluation period shall not be more than one year since the date of acguisition. The
consolidated financial statements of Bachoco include the balance sheet of OK Industries, Inc. and
subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2011, based on the best estimate of its net asset's fair value as of the
acquisition date, and its results of operations for tha two-month pericd ended December 31, 2011, The
fair values of these assets acquired were determined using the cost and market approaches.

The cost approach, which estimates walue by determining the current cost of replacdng an asset with
another of equivalent economic utility, was utilized primarily for plant and eguipment The cost to replace
a given asset reflects the estimated reproduction or replacement cost for the asset, less an allowance for
loss in value due to depreciation. The market approgch, which indicates value for a subjet asset based on
available market pricing for comparable assets, was utilized primarily for real property. The market
approach indicates value based on financlal multiples available for similar entities and adjustments for the
lack of control or lack of marketability that market participants would consider in determining fair value,

Due to their short-term maturities, the Company believes the carrying amounts of cash eguivalents,
accounts recelvables, other current assets, accounis payable and other current llabilities approximate
their fair value at the acquisition date, At the adquisition date, inventories are stated at their net
realizable value. The Company's investment in an unconsolidated entity is recorded at its historical cost



and the investment in insurance contracts is recorded at its aggregate net cash surrender value, both of
which approximate fair value at the acquisition date.

The following summarizes the acguired balance sheet of OK Industies, Inc., incleding the application of
purchase accounting adjustments to record the best estimate fair value of assets and liabilities at the date
of acquisition (Movember 1, 2011}

Allocated to:
Current assets & 1,332,762
Property, plant and eguipment 1,653 980
Other nen-current assets 153 364
Total assels 3,180,106
Current liabilities (3590,001)
Deferred income tax (519,189)
Mon-controlling interest | 7.025)
Met acquired assets 2.363,891
Purchase price 1,269 306
Gain on bargain purchasze & 954,585

Under MexFRS B-7 "Business acquisition”, if the amount of the fair value of the net assets acquired
exceeds the aggregate purchase price amount (bargain purchase], then the fair value of the net assets
acquired shall be adjusted up to the purchase price amount as such purchase price & considered the fair
value of the transaction between two independent parties in a free market.

Adjustment to the falr value of the net assels acquired should be applied by reducing the value of certain
assets until exhausting its value in the following order: a} firstly, intangible assets, b} then, long-term non-
monetary assets as property, plant and eguipment, and cj finally, any other long-term assets as
permanent investments. Once exhausted the value of such assets, the remaining amount, if any, should
be recognized as a gain on bargain purchase in the Income statement on the acquisition date,

In accordance with the provision of MesFRS B-7, the Company adjusted the fair value of the property
plant and equipment and the related deferred inccme taxes up to the ameunt of the gain on bargain
purchase on the net assets acquired,

27



The following table summarizes the adjusted values of OK Industres, Inc, under Mex FRS at November 1,
2011 (acguisition date], and December 31, 2011

MNovember1, December 31,
2011 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 5 BE 5 43,129
Accounts receivable 340,443 391 857
Inventories 949 518 1,046,032
Refundable income taxes 12,155 .
Cther current assets 30,358 23,649
Property, plant and eguipment 11,876 12,045
Investment in unconsalidated entity 3R,5993 38,026
Other long-term receivable 116,371 119,781
Deferred income taxes 168,330 174,141
Total assets acquired 1,666 332 1,848 ol
Accounts payabile [203,631) (382 240)
Other current lakilities [135,370) [157.110)
Total liabilities assumed [390,001) {539,350)
Moncontrolling interest in consolidated entity {7,025] (7,025}
Met assets acquired 5 1,269.306 & 1,302,285

Trosi de Carme acquisition

On August 20, 2011, Induba Pavos, 5.4, de CV, [subsidiary] acquired certain assets of Trosi de Carne, 5.4
de CV, Under MexFRS B-T7 “Business acquisition”, this net assets acquisition gualifies as a Business
Combination. As result of this acquisition the Company will be manufacturing beef value-added and pig.
The aggregate purchase price that was pakd in cash amounted te 557,723 s comprised as follow:

Land 5 421
Property 7,825
Machinery and eguipment 25,240
Inventory 13,500
Sccount Receivable 10,732

5 57,723

The Company is in the process of completing the allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the
assets acquired.,

Other assets acguisitions

On Decernber 16, 2011, Bachoco, 54 de CV. [subsidiary] acquired certaing assets from Mercantil
Agropecuaria Coromuel, 5450 de CV. (MACSA) located in the state of Baja California. The transaction
consisted of the acquisition of property, plant and eguipment, for an amount of 555,522, The acquisition
intend increase the brand cormmercial presence and improve the distribution channels in that region,

In July 2009, Bachocoo, 5.4 de CV. (subsidiary) acquired a poultry processing plant located in the state of
Nuevo Lean, with a production capacity of 9,000 chickens per hour, The transaction consisted of the



acquisition of property, plant and equipment for an amount of 5321,%84 and inventory in stock for an
amount of 5142,537. In addition to reducing costs, the goal of this acquisition, is to increase the
production capacity and diversifying.

In September 2009, Campi Alimentos, 5.4 de C.V. [subsidiary) acquired a poultry feed processing plant
also located in the state of Nueve Lean, with a production capacity of 12,000 tons per month, The
transaction consisted of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, for an amount of 5114 904, As
in the aforementioned luly 200% acquisition, the Company expanded its animal balanced feed production
capacity for internal consumption.

(2) Accounting Policies and Practices-

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make a number of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions inclede, but are not limited to, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, and poodwill; valuation allowances for receivables, inventories and deferred income tax
assets; valuation of primary investment securities and financial instruments; and assets and labor
obligations related to employee benefits, Actual results could differ from those estimates and
assumplions,

The aferementioned financial statements are presented in Mexican pesos (reporting currency), which is
the same as the recording currency and the functional currency, except for the forelgn entity that uses U5
dollar as its recording and functional currency,

For dischosure purposes, “pesos” or “5" means thousands of Mexican pesos, and "dollars” or "US dollars”
means thousands of U5, dollars,

‘When it is deemed relevant, certain amounts presented in the notes to the financial statements include
between parentheses a convenlence translation inle dellars, Into pesos, or both, as applicable, These
translations are provided as informative data and should not be construed as representations that the
amounts in pesos or dollars, as applicable, actually represent those peso or dollar amounts or could be
comverted into pesos or dollars at the indicated rate,

The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Mexican Financial
Reporting Standards (Mex FRS} in effect as of the balance sheet date. The significant accounting policies
and practices followed by the Company In the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are described below:

a) Consolidation-
The consalidated financlal statements include the financial statements of the Campany and all of its
majorty-owned and controlled subsidiaries.

The awnership interests of other stockholders in such subsidiaries are shown as non-controlling
interest.

Intercompany balances, investments and significant transactions between consolidated entities have
been eliminated In consolidation,

The results of operations of the subsidiaries were included in the Company's consolidated financial
staternents as at the acquisition or inceptien moanth,
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The consolidation of the subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, 2000 and 2011, have been prepared
or translated in accordance with Mex FRS,

The accompanying consclidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011:

Percentage equity interest

2009 2010 2011
Awiser, 5.4, de TV, 100 100 100
Bachooo, 5.8, de CW. ["BSACY) 100 100 100
Bachooo Comercial, 5.4, de CW. 100 100 100
Campi Alimentos, 5.4, de CN. [1) 100 100 100
Huewo y Derivados, S0, de CW{(2) 97 - -
Operadora de Serviclos de Personal, 5.8, de CW. 100 100 100
Pecuarius Laboratorios, 5.4, de C.W, il il 64
Secha, 5.4, de CV. 100 100 100
Sepetec, 5.4 de CV. 100 100 100
Lervicios de Personal Administrativo, 5.4, de W, 100 100 100
Induba Pavos, 5.4, de TV, 100 100 100
DK Industries, Inc., and subsidiaries [note 1) - - 100

The main subsidiaries of the group and their activities are as follows:

- Bachoco, 5A. de CW. ("BSACY") {includes four subsidiaries which are 50% owned, and for which
BSACY has control]. BSACY is engaged in breeding, processing and marketing of poultry (chicken and
eggsl,

- 0K Industries, Inc. {includes four subsidiaries which are 100°% owned and one which is 85% owned,
and for which OFK Industries has control). OK Industries was acquired by Bachoco on Movember 1,
2011, and It and their subsidiaries operate as an integrated poultry processer in the United States
[U.5), selling finished products to customers throughout the U5 and other countries,

- Campl slimentos, 5.8 de CV, (Campl], 1= engaged In producing and marketing of bBalanced animal
feed.

= Anaser, 5.4, de CV,

- Operadora de Servicios de Personal, 5.4, de CV,
-Sacha, 5.4, de OV,

- Sepatec, 5.4, de C.V.

- Servicios de Personal Administrativo, 5.4 de CV,

These companies are engaged in providing administrative and operative services to their related
partias.

i1} A&t the ordinary and extraordinary general stockholders’ meeting held on March 30, 2009, the
shareholders agreed to the merger through incorporation of Acuicola Bachoco, 5.4, de TV, (the
acquires entity] with Campl Allmentos, 5.4, de Y, [the acquirer entity]. The merger became effective
as of March 31, 2009, so that as of that date, Acuicala, as the acquired corporation, no longer exists.
Pursuant to the Ley General de Sociedades Mercantiles {General Corporation and Partnership Law)



when the merger became effective, total assets and liabilities, rights, obligations and responsibilities
of the merged corporation became part of the acquiring corporation without reservation or limitation.

i} At the extraordinary stockholders’ meeting held on March 31, 2010, the stockholders agreed the
liguidation of the balance sheet as of December 31, 2009, The aforementioned liguidation was
effective on January 1, 2000,

b} Translation of foreign currency financial statements-
The financial statements of foreign operations are translated into the reporting currency by intially
determining if the functional currency and the currency for recording the foreign operations are
different and then translating the functional currency to the reporting currency, using the historical
exchange rate andfor the exchange rate at year end, {and the inflation index of the country of origin
wihen the foreign eperation is located in inflaticnary economy].

c] Rewenue recognition-
Revenues are recognized when each of the followang criteria is met:
- There is evidence of an arrangement.
- Delivery of goods has ocourred.
= The selker fixes or determines the prices with the buyer,
- Collectability is reasonably certain,

The Company's products are sold to a large number of customers without significant concentrations with
any of them.

Based on management's analysis and estimates, the Company provides for doubtful receivables
(reported under selling, general and administrative expenses),

d) Recognition of the effects of inflation-
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Mexican
FRS in effect as of the statement of financial position date and include the recognition of the effects of
inflation on financial information through December 31, 2007, based on the Mexican Mational
Consumer Price Index (NCPI) published by Banco de Mexico (central bank].

Curmulative inflation Indexes and percentages of the current and three preceding vears are as follows:

December 31 MCPI Inflation
Yearly Cumulative
2011 103.551 3.80% 12.26%
2010 95,742 4.40% 15.19%
2009 95,237 3.5 14.488%
2008 92, 240 6.52% 15.01%

& summary of the key inflation acoounting concepts and procedures is as follows:

- Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and eguipment were carried at replacement cost, determined annually by an
independent appralser, through 1996, The fifth amendment to Bulletin B-10 "Accounting Recogmition
af the Effects of inflotion on Finoncal Informotion” (as modified], which is applicable to financial
statements for periods beginning on or after lanwary 1, 1957, disallows the use of appraisals on fixed
assets, Based on such amendment, the Company restated the appraised value at December 31, 1996,
and the acquisitions of property, plant and egquipment since Janwary 1, 1997, until December 31, 2007,
by applying factors derived from the NCPL
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- Stockhodders’ eguity

Until December 31, 2007, the date on which the economic environment turned to a non-inflationary
environment in conformity with FRS B-10 “Effects of Inflation”, capital stock, additional paid-in capital,
reserve for repurchase of shares of Company's own shares, retained earnings and other capital
accounts were restated using adjustment factors derved from the MCPL The amounts thus obtained in
this manner represented the constant value of the stockholders’ equity.

e} Cash and cash equivalemnts-
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits and checking accounts in local and
foreign currencies and other highly liguld instruments, At the date of the consolidated financial
statements, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the statements of

income, under comprehensive financial results.

f) Awvailable on-demand investments and primary investment securities-

All rights and obligations arising from treasury primany investment securities are recognized on the
statement of financial position and the Company classifies its investment securities depending on the
purpose for which the securities were acquired: (i} held-to-maturity, {il] trading or (ill] avallable for
sale. Investments in these instrurments with maturity of three months or less at the time of investment
are incleded on the line-item “available on-demand imvestments” within cash and cash equivalents
(see note 4], Furthermore, primary investment securities with maturity over three months are
included under current assets. In turn, the balance of debt securities with due dates less than one year
is reported under current liabilities

Trading securities are bought and held principaly for the purpese of seling them in the near term.
Held-to-maturity debt securities are securities in which the Company has the solvency, ability and
intent to hold the security wntil maturity, All securities not incleded in trading or held or held-to-
maturity are dassified as avallable-for sale.

Trading securities, except held-to-maturity securities, are recorded at fair value, where peso-
denominated debt securities are taken from the bank statements which are based on the information
of the local price vendors, while US-denominated debt securities are based on diversified sources,
Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost. Changes in the carrying amounts of trading
securities, including the related costs and yields are included wnder comprehensive financal results,
Gains or losses arlsing from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities (less the
corresponding yield) non functional currency denominated and foreign exchange gain or loss, in the
case of equity securities, as well as the related monetary position gain or loss, as applicable, are
reported as a comprehensive income (loss) item within stockholders” eguity.

Furthermore, where evidence exists that a financial asset held-to-maturity shall not be recowvered in
full, the expected loss [impairment] is recognizedin the statement of income,

gl #Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts-
foccounts receivable as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 are reported at fair value, net of the allowance
for doubtful accounts.

The Company’s palicy is to record an allowance for doubtful acoounts for balances which are not likely
to be recovered. In establishing the reguired allowance, management considers historcal losses,
current market conditions, custemers’ financial condition, the amount of receivables in dispute, price
differences and the current receivable aging and current payment patterns.



h} Inventories, agricultural products and biological assets-

- Inventories

At December 31, 2000 and 2011, inventories are stated at the lower of historical cost determined by
the average cost method or market, provided that replacement cost is not less than net realizable
value,

-Agriculture

The financial statements recognize the requirements of Bulletin E-1, "Agricudture” which establishes
the rules for recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing blological assets and agricultural
products.

Bulletin E-1 requires biologlcal assets and agricultural products [the latter ab the time of harvesting) to
be valued at their fair value, net of the estimated costs at the point of sale. Bulletin E-1 also
establishes that whenever the fair value cannot be determined in a reliable, verifiable and objective
manner, the assets are to be valued at their production cost, less any impairment loss.

The allowance for decline in the productivity of breeder chickens and pigs is estimated based on their
expected future life, under the straight-line methed.

Agricultural products are live chickens, processed chickens, commercial eggs and pigs available for
sale. The Company's biclogical assets are comprised of poultry in their different stages, incubatable
eggs and breeder pigs.

Broiler chicks less than six and a half weeks old, incubatable eggs, breeder pigs and laying hens are
valued at production cost since it is not possible to determine their fair value in a reliable, verifiakle
and objective manner.

Broilers more than six and a half weeks old through their date of sale are valued at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs, considering the price per kilogram of processed chicken at the valuation
date,

Processed chicken and commercial eggs are valued at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs,
considering the price per kilogram of processed chicken and commercial eggs at the time such items
are considered agricultural products, From such date through the date of sale, the fair value is
considered to be the cost of processed chicken or commercial eges, not in excess of net realizable
value,

The Company is exposed to financial risks due to changes in the price of chicken, The Company
astimates that the price of chicken will not fall siznificantly in the future; conseguently, the Company

has not entered inte any derlvative agreement of any other type of agreement to offset the risk of a
drap in the price of chicken.

The Company reviews pericdically the price of chicken so as to evaluate the need for a financal
instrument to offset such risk,

In conformity with Bulletin E-1, biological assets and agricultural products were classified as either
current of pon-curfent assets based an thelr avallability for sale and the business operating cyele,

Cost of =zales represents the replacement cost of inventories at the time of sale, increased, as
applicable, for reductions in the net realizable value of inventories during the year,
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The Company records the necessary allowances for inventory impairment arising from damaged,
obsolete or slow-moving inventories or any other reason indicating that the carming amount will
excesd the future revenues expected from use orrealization of the inventory items.

Beginning January 1, 2011, and with retrospective application, based on FR: C-5 “Advanced
Payments”, advances to suppliers of inventory are presented as part of prepald expenses and other
current assets, As result, advances to supgliers of inventory for 5366, 160 originally reported within the
caption of imventories in 2010, were reclassified to prepaid expenszes and other current assaets in the
comparative statement of finandal position {3ee note 3al.

i) Assets available for sale-
Assets available for sabe are comprised mainly of assets acquired through foreclosure and an aircraft
acquired from the business combination of OF indusiries, Inc, {note 1), Management 15 actively
marketing the aircraft and expects to complate the sale during the next fiscal year (see note 3a).

il Property, plant and equipment-
Froperty, plant and equipment are initially recorded at acquisition cost [except Tor the property, plant
and equipment acquired through business combination that are recorded at fair value) and through
December 31, 2007, adjusted for inflation by using factors derived from the NCPI {see note 2d).

From lanuary 1, 2007, acguisitions of assets urder construction or installation include the related
comprehensive financial results as part of the value of assets. During 2009, 2010 and 2011, no
comprehensive financing costs have been capitalized, as result of Mexican FRS D-6 criteria not being
met,

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, determined by management (see note 9).

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful life of the improvement or the related
contract term, whichever is shorter.

Finor repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Beginning lanuary 1, 2011, and with retrospective application, based on FRS C-5, “Advanced
PFayments*, advances to suppliers of fised assets are presented as part of other non-current assets, As
result, advances to suppliers of fived assets for 543,290 originally accounted for as property, plant and
aeguipment in 2010, were reclassified to non-current assets accounts in the comparative statement of
financial position (see note b,

k) Prepaid expenses and other current assets-
Mainly include prepald expenses for the purchase of Inventories and serdces that are received after
the date of the staterment of financdal position and in the ordinary course of operations,

I} Impairment of property, plant and equipment-

The Company periedically evaluates the values of long-lived assets of property, plant and equipment,
to determine whether there is an indication of patential impairment. Recoverability of assets to be
held and wsed is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset against future cash flows
expected 1o be generated by the asset. If the net carrying amaunt of an assel exceeds its estimated
net revenuss, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of, are reported in the balance sheets
at the lower of net carrying amount or realizable value, The assets of a group dassified as available-for
sale are presented separately on the consolidates statement of financlal position.



mi) Leases-

Leased property, plant and egquipment arrangements are recognized as capital leases if: a) the
ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the lessee upon termination of the lease; b) the
agreement includes an option to purchase the asset at a reduced price; c) the term of the leasze is
substantially the same as the remaining wsaful life of the leased assel; or d} the present value of
minimum lease payments is substantially the same as the market value of the leased asset, net of any
benefit or scrap value,

When the risks and benefits inherent to the ownership of the leased asset remain mostly with the
lessor, such leases are dassified as operating leases, and the lease expense s charged to results of

income as incurred.

The Company classified its leases as operating leases at December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011,

n) Business Combinations and Goodwill-

Bachoco applies the purchase method as the sole recognition alternative for a business combination
by allocating the purchase price to all assets acguired and labdlities assumed based on thelr estimated
fair values as of the acquisition date.

Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price and the falr value of the identiflable
assets acqguired in & business combination at the purchase date.

In the case of a gain on a bargain purchase (negative goodwill], such gain is reduced from the value of
certaln acguired assets up to the amount of such gain on bargain purchase,

Goodwill is recorded initially at acquisition cost and through December 31, 2007, was restated using
adjustrment factors derlved from the MCPL Goodwill is subject to annual impalrment testing,

At December 31, 2010 and 2011, there was no impairment loss in the value of goodwill shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position,

Other non-current assets-
Other non-current assets consist mainly of advances to suppliers of fixed assets, investment in life
insurance contracts, and investment in unconsolidated entity,

At December 31, 2011, OK Industries, Inc. {foreign subsidiary} held a minority interest in Souwthern
Hens, Inc. The Company cannot exercise significant influence over the investee and, therefore has
reported the investment at original cost, which approximated fair value as of the acquisition date.

DK Industries, Inc. (foreign subsidiany) owns life insurance policies for certain former stockholders. The
Cormpany has recorded these policies at thelr aggregate net cash surrender value of 5119,792,

p)] Liakilities, accruals, contingent liabilities and commitments-

Liability provisions are recognized when the fallewing three conditions are met: (i) the Company has
current obligations (legal or assurmed) derived from past events, (i) it is probable that the lability will
give rise to a future cash disburserment for its settlernent and (iii] the liability can be reasonably
estimated. When a reasonable estimation cannot be made, gualitative desclosure is provided in the
notes to the consolidated financlal staternents. Contingent revenues, earnings of assets are not
recagnized until realization is assured.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, accrual amounts are determined as the present
value of the expected disbursements to settle the obligation. The discount rate |s detesmined on a
pre-tax basis and reflects current market conditions at the statement of financial position date and,
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where appropriate, the risks specific to the liablity. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense,

q) Employee benefits-

Benefit plan in Mexican operation-

Bachooo has a retirement plan in which all non-union workers in Mexico participate. Pension benefits
are determined bazed on the zalary of workers in their final three years of service, the number of
years worked in the Company and their age at retirement. This plan includes:

- Defined contribution plan: This fund consists of employee and Company contributions. The employee
contribution percentage ranges from 1% to 5%. The Company contribution ranges from 1% to 2% in
the case of employees with less than 10 vears” seniority, and the same contribution percentage as the
employes (up to 5%) when the employes has more than 10 years’ seniority,

= Defined benefit plan: This fund consists solely of the Company's contributions and covers the
Company's labor obligations with each employee,

Seniority pramiums and severance payments are paid to workers in Mexico as reguired by Mexican
labor law.

Termination benefits for reasons other than restructuring and retirement to which employees in
Mexico are entitled are charged to operations for each year, based on actuarial computations using
the projected unit credit method and projected salares, Al December 31, 2011 and for purposes of
recognizing benefits upon retirement, the remaining average service life of employees entitled to plan
benefits approximates 1189 years (see note 17},

The actuarial profit or loss is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of income for the
period as it is accrued (benefits due to termination) and is amortized based on the remaining labor life
of the employees in Mexico that are expected to receive benefits from the plan (retirement benefits).

Benefit plan in foreign operation

i} DK Industries, Inc. (foreign subsidiary] maintains a 401k} retirement plan {defined contribution
plan) covering all employees meeting certain eligibility requirerments. The Company contributes to
the plan at the rate of 50% of employess contributions up to a maximum of 2% of the individual
employees compensation.

i) OK Industries, Inc (foreign subsidiary] malatains a deferred compensation arrangement with
cartain key employees. Amounts payable under this plan vest 10 years from the date of the
agreement. The benefit value of each unit is equal te the increase in initial subsidiary book value
from the date of the agreement to the conclusion of the vesting perlod.

r] Comprehensive financial results [CFR}-
The CFR includes interest income and expense, foreign exchange gains and losses and valuation of
financial instruments, including derivatives,

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of execution
of settlement, Foreign currency assets and labilities are translated at the exchange rate in force at
the consolidated balance sheet date. Ewchange differences arising from assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are reported in the consolidated statements of income for the year.



t)

u}

Comprehensive income-

The comprehensive income reported on the statements of stockhobders’ equity represents the results
of the Company’s total activities during the year, and includes the tems mentioned below which, in
accordance with Mexican FRS, are reported direcily in stockholders’ equity, except for net income.

2009 2010 21
Met income £ 797600 5 1983350 4§ 157,041
Currency traslation adjustment 35,636

& 797600 5 1983350 5 192677

Man controlling interest 11,445 2.9% 2097

Comprehensive Income 3 BOO,045 % 1986326 5 194774

Derivative financlal instruments-

Irrespective of their use and either issuance or halding purpose, the Company recognizes all derivative
instruments as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet at their respective fair values. Fair
values are determined based on known market prices such as Chicago Board of Trade [CBOT) and,
wihen not listed in a market, based on valuation technigues and inputs usually accepted in the financial
sactor.

Changes in the fair value of financial instruments not designated and/or not qualifying under strict
hedge accounting criteria are recognized within eamings for the year in which such changes ocour, as
derivatives effects under comprehensive financial results.

In the case of operations with options on futures not designated and/or do not qualify under strict
hedge accounting criteria, premiums paid or received in connection with options are initially
recognized respectively as assets or liabilities within derivative instruments; while subseguent changes
in thelr fair value are recognized within income of the year in which such changes occur under
comprehensive financial results,

Derivative financial Instruments, designated and gqualified as hedging instruments for one or more
rishs-

The Company uses salected financial derivative instruments to protect itself against adverse price
fluctuations in agriculture commodities, such as corn and sorghum. Those agriculture commaodities
dervative instruments include futures and options on futures which are listed en the CBOT, as well as
options on futures accessed through ASERCA (Farming Marketing Support and Services, ascribed to
Mexico's Secretary of Farming and Agriculturs), who functions as counterparty and that is a
dependent entity of the Mexican Government's unit that belongs to the Secretary of Farming,
Livestock, Rural Development, Fishing and Food [SAGARPA, Secretaria de Agricultura, Ganaderla y
Desarrolle Rural, Pesca v Alimentacion), through which, 8 commodities-related price hedging program
ithe “Farming by Contract”) scheme is offered to both farmers and agro-business entities such as the
Company, The ASERCA program has two partidpating modalities: (i) 10% of the payment of the
option's premium and 100% of the benefit with a 80% discount on the amount of the initial premium,
or {ii] 50% of the payment of the option’s premium, and 100% of the benefit with a 30% discount on
the amount of the initial premivm.

When the derivatives are acguired to hedge risks, and accomplish with hedge accounting, there are
strict reguirements the hedging relationship be documented for each hedged price risk. This
documentation includes a description of the obective or hedge strategy, the nature of the hedged
itern position, the riskis] to be hedged, the desgnated derivatives and how the initial effectiveness
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testing assessment will be performed, as well as the subseguent measurement of its retrospective
effectiveness, which applies to each established hedge ralationship.

Formal hedging derivatives designated into a hedging relationship, follow special hedge accounting
recognition, for fair value changes based on each corresponding hedge accounting model: (1)
Fluctuations in fair value type of hedges, require that both the derlvative and the hedged item are to
be valued at fair value and recognized in the statement of income adjusting the carrying value of
hedge item; {2} in the case of cash flow hedges, only the effective portion of the derivative is
temporarily recognized in comprehansive income [equity] and recycled to operations when the effects
of the hedged itern affects operations as cost of good sold, Interest, elc,, while the ineffective portion
is immediately recognized within operations.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting in the following cases: when the derivative has explred,
has been sold, is cancelled or exercised, or when the dervative does not achisve the required level of
accumulated effectiveness as to compensate for the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
hedged item, when the edged item is prepaid or when the Company decides to cancel the hedge
relationship on a discretionary basls.

Certain financial derivative instruments are entered into to hedge on or more exposures from the
user's sconomic perspective, but are neither designated nor gualify for hedge accounting purposes,
hence these derivatives are treated accounting wise, as trading derivatives that is, with fluctuations in
the fair value of these derivatives recognized within comprehensive financial result.

In the case of hedges with opticns on futures of combinations of these options, which are designated
and gualifying under hedge accounting models, the premiums paid and received through these
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized as assets within derivative financial
instrurments in the consolidated balance sheet, with subsequent changes in thelr fair values recognized
in the comprehensive financial result in the case of fair value hedges, while under cash flow hedge
model, these changes are recognized within other comprehensive income (OCI).

The Company has an investment risk and hedge commithes that analyzes the Campany’s risk,

v} Income taxes (income tax [IT), flat rate business tax (IETU]], and employee statutory profit sharing
(ESPS)-
IT, IETU and E%P% payable for the year are determined in conformity with the tax provisions in effect
according to the income tax law applicable to each subsidiary.

Consolidated deferred income taxes represents the additien of the amounts determined in each
subsidiary by applying the enacted statutory tax. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities to different
tax jurisdictions are not offset.

Deferred IT and deferred ESPS [for the Mexican subsidiaries), are accounted for under the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax and ESP5 assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
exlsting assets and labilities and their respective tax bases, according to the income tax law applicable
to each subsidiary and in the case of IT, for tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax and
E5P5 azsets and habilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled, The effect on
deferred tax and E5P% assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income during the
period that includes the enactment date.



w] Cumulative currency translation effect-

Cumulative currency translation reprasents the difference resulting from the translation of the figures
from the functional currency of foreign operations into the reporting currency.

%] Met income per share-

Met income per share hat been computed based on controlling interest net income and on the
weighted awverage number of shares outstanding, as established in Bulletin B-14 “Profit per Shara”.

¥} Financial information by segments-

FRS B-5, “Flagpcal information by Segments”, establishes the rules for disclosing financlal information
by segment.

Financial infermation by segment is prepared based on a management's approach, in conformity with
FRS B-5, considering a segment to be an operating component that is subject to risks and benefits that
are different from other business segments. Beginning 2011, gecgraphic operating segments are akso
considerad {see note 21},

z) Reclassifications-

Certain captions shown in the 2010 financial statements as originally issued have been reclassified for
uniformity of presentation with the 2011 financial statements. The changes in these reclassifications
wiera recognized retrospectively at December 31, 2010 and 2009, in conformity with Mex FRS B-1, (ses
note 3]

aa) Convenience translation-

United 5tates thousands dollars amounts as shown in the accompanying consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 20011, as well as in the consolidated statements of income and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011 have been included solely for the convenience of
the reader and are translated from pesos to US dollars as a matter of arithmetic computation onby, at
an exchange rate of 313.97 to one U.S. dollar, which was the exchange rate at December 31, 2011
Such translation should not be construed as a representation that the peso amounts could have been
or could be converted into L5, dellars at this rate,

(3} Mew accounting pronouncements-

(a}

The FRS, and improvements mentioned below, ssued by the Mexican Board of Financial Reporting
Standards (Consejo Mexicano de Mormas de Informacion Financiera or CINIF) became effective for
fizcal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with the respective prospective or retrospective
application being specified in each case.

FRS C4 “Inventories”- FRS C-4 is effective beginning lanuary 1, 2011 with retrospective application,
supersedes Bulletin C-4 and establishes new valuation, presentation and disclosure rubes for initial and

subseguent recognition of inventarkes on the staterment of financlal poesition, The principal changes
are as follows:

FRS C-4 eliminates: &) direct cost as a valuation system and, b} the inventory cost formula [forrmerly
method) referred to as Last In = First Out (LIFO).

Imventory cost can only written down under the base of net realizable value.

Far Inventories acquired on an installment payment basis, the difference between the purchase
price under normal credit conditions and the amount paid must be recognized as financial cost
during the financing period.
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*  Under certain circumstances, estimates of impairment lesses on inventories recognized in a prior
period may be deducted or charged off against results of income for the period in which such
modifications ooour,

= [tems whose benefits and risks have already been transferred to the entity must be recognized as

inventories; therefore, prepayments are not part of inventory.

fccounting changes resulting from the initial application of this standard were recognized
retrospactively, affecting the financial statements as follows:

Previoushy reported Accounting Adjusted
December 31, 2010 armounts change amounts
Inventories, net 5 3.577592% 5 (366,160} 5 3,211 7649
December 31, 2009
Inventories, net 5 3,613 212 5 567 458) 5 3,045 754

(b) FRS C-5 “Prepayments”™— FRS C-5 15 effective beginning lanuary 1, 2011, with retrospective application,
supersedes Bulletin C.5, and includes primarily the following changes:

*  Advances for purchase of inventories (current assets) or property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets [non-current assets), among others, must be reported wunder prepayments provided the
benefits and risks inherent in the assets to be acquired or the services to be received have not yet
been transferred to the entity. Furthermore, prepaid expenses must be reported based on the nature
of the item to be acquired, either under current assets or NOM-CUFrent assets,

*  Among other things, the fellowing must be disclosed in notes to financal statements: breakdown of
prepayments, accounting policies for recognition and impairment losses, as well as relevant reversal of
impairments.

fccounting changes resulting from the initial application of this standard were recognized
retrospectively, affecting the financial statements as follows:

December 31, 2010 Previoushy reparted Accounting Adjusted
amounts change amounts

Prepayments and other non-
current asqets (fram inventory]
g 138,954 g 366,160 4 505,114

Progerty, |'.'I|-i°l nt and eguiprment,
net 4 10,587,321 8 [43,290) % 10,544,031

Other non-current assets (from
property, plant and
equipment) 5 21,553 5 43,290 5 64,833




()

(d)

December 31, 2008

Prepayments and other non-
current assets {from inventory)

Property, plant and eguipment,
net

Cither non-current assats [from

property, plant and
equipment)

Previously reported Accounting Adjusted
amounts change Amounts
155,219 & 567458 & 722,677
10510,126 & (44,144) 5 10,355,982
20,006 5 44144 & 64, 240

FRS C-& “Property, plant and eguipment”- FR% C-6 is effective beginning lanuary 1, 3011, The
accounting changes resulting from the initial application of this FRS must be prospectively
recognized, The principal changes with respect to the superseded Bulletin include the following:

= The bases for determination of the residual value of a component are added.
« The requirement to assign an appraised value to property, plant and equipment acquired at no
cost of at an inadequate cost is eliminated,
« [Depredation for components representative of a property, plant and equipment tem is
mandatory, independently of the depreciation of the rest of the itern as if it were a single

component,

# Deprecation of idle components must continue, unless depreciation is determined based on the

activity,

2011 FRS Improvements-

In Decernber 2010, the CINIF issued the docurrent referred to as “2011 FRS Improvements”, which
contains precise modifications to some FRS, The modifications that bring about accounting changes

are listed below:
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* FRS B-1 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”- FRS B-1 requires the presentation of the
initial statement of finandal position when there are retrospective adjustments, as well as the
presentation in the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity of previously reported initial
balances, the effects of retrospective application and restated initial balances. These
improvements were effective beginning lanuary 1, 2011 and were retrospectively applicable,

= FR5 B-2 “Statement of cash flows™- The requirement to present in the statement of cash flows
the line (tem “cash surplus to be applied in financing activities or, cash to be obtained from
financing activities™ is eliminated and is left at a recommendation level. This revision was
effective for fiscal years beginning January 1. 2011 and was retrospectively applicable.

# Bulletin C-3 "Accounts receivable® - Interect income on accounts receivable is recognized when
accrued, provided the relevant amount is reliably determined and likely to be recovered.
Furthermere, it is provided that interest income on accounts receivable unlikely to be recovered
must not be recognized. These improvements are effective beginning lanuary 1, 2011 and are
prospectively applicable.

# FRS C-10 “Derivative financial instrurments and hedging activities” — The improvements to this
new FRS are effective beginning lanuary 1, 2011, with retrospective application. The principal
improvements indude the following:

= Certain effects of hedge effectiveness may be excluded.

& An intra-group transaction may be recognized as hedging only when the functional
currencies of the related parties are different from each other.

= Reporting of the effect of the hedged interest rate risk is reguired, when a portfolio
portion is the hedged position,

* Account margins must be reported separately.

* In a hedge relationship, a proportion of the total amount of the kedging instrument may
be designated as the hedging instrument. The impossibility of designating a hedge
relationship for a portion of the term of the hedging instrument is specfied.

= [FRS C-13 "Related parties®- The definition of “immediate family" is now more specific as it was
limited to providing a list of the family members that fell within such definition. This revision was
effective for fiscal years beginning lanuary 1. 2011 and was retrospectively applicable.

{4) Cash and cash equivalents-

Consolldated cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 consist of:

2010 2011
Cash and bank accounts 5 513076 & 472,318
Available on-demand investments (note 13b) 3,445,899 2,151,702
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 3,958,975 2,624,020
Restricted cash 8,899 1,641
Total cash and cash equivalents 4 3967 874 5 2,625,661

Restricted cash corresponds to margin calls to cover future derivative commitments, due to adversa
market mowements associated with the underlying prices for which the Company had an open position as
of December 31, 2010 and 2011,



(5] Trade receivables, net-

Trade receivables at Decemnber 31, 2010 and 2011 amounting 5963,273 and 51,507,095, respectively, are
shown net of an allowance of doubtful accounts of 532,990 and 538,537, respectively,

(6} Related parties-

aj Asummary of related party accounts payable as of December 321, 2000 and 2011 is as follows:

Vimnifos, 5.6 de CW.

Frescopack, 5.4, de TV,

Maguinaria Agricola, 5.4, de CY.

Llantas v Accesorios, 5.4, de CAL

Autos y Accesorios, 5.A, de CW,

Autos y Tractores de Culiacin, 5.4, de CV,
Camiones y Tractocamiones de Somora, 5.4, de W

Alfonso B Bours, 5.4, de CV,

Distribuidora Automotriz de los Bochis, 5.4, de CY,

2010 2011
5 43051 & 47,564
6,670 18,609
7,873 8,566
1,144 3,270
678 422
1,025 41
&7 37
52 34

213 -

5 60,873 5 78,543

At December 31, 2010 and 2011, balances due to related parties correspond to unsecured current
accounts denominated in pesos that bear no interest and are payable in short-term basis,

b} For the years ended December 31, 2009, 3010 and 2011, the Company had the following

transactions with related parties:

Purchases of feed, raw materals and packing supplies 2009 2000 2011
Wimifos, 5.4, da CW. 261,335 5 25967 & 347,062
Frescopack, 5.4, de C.V, 136,609 113,229 119,950
Pulrmex 2000, 5.4, de CW, 17,307 10,896 10,302
Cualyplast, 5.A. de CV. 21 1% ]
Purchases of vehicles, tires and spare parts 20048 2010 2011
Magquinaria Agricola, 5.4, de C.W. 5E502 5 64,5458 35 65, 205
Butos y Accesorios, 54, de CW, 11,8419 13,371 24,595
Sutos y Tractores de Cullacin, 5.8, de OV, 19,555 16,551 23,207
Llantas v Accesorios, 5.4, de CV, 0,848 32,775 21,640
Camiones y Tractocamiones de Sonora,

54, de OV, E,301 338 3,333
Distribuidora Automotriz de los Machis, 54, de £V, 11,083 7,635 2,135
Alfonso R Bours, 5.4, de CA. 847 931 767

Airplane leasing expenses 2005 2010 2011
Taxis Aéreos del Horoeste, 5.4, de C.V, 9,810 5 8868 5 10,063
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Purchases transactions with related parties are made at market prices, which are similar to those
that weould have been used in arms-length transactions,

(7} Imeentories and biological assets-

al Inventares conslst of the following:

2010 2011
Raw materials and subproducts [net of S27.340 (2,000
LAD) reserve as at December 31, 2001) 5 1523680 % 1,913,359
kedicne, materials and spare parts 453 373 487178
Finished feed 60,405 83,601
2,036,468 2,484,138
Agricultural products:
Live chicken 277,654 1,383,769
Processed chicken [net of 330,203 (2,162 USD) reserve
as at December 31, 2011} 250,904 670,890
Commerclal egg 23,094 27,498
Beef 4,463 13,658
Turkey 20,186 12,598
1,175,301 2,108,413
Total 5 3,211,769 5 4,582 551

b) Biological assets at December 31, 2010 and 2011 consist of the following:

2010 2011
Current biological assets:

Incubatable eggs 4 105,873 5 128,184
Breeder pigs 48, 120 58,873
Total current biological assets 5 153,993 & 187,157

Non-current biological assets:
Hens in production 5 771,454 & 1,014,676
Laying and breeder hens 282,111 353,811
Breeder pigs 34,828 41,566
Allowance for productivity declines (338, 105) (420,410)
Total mon-current biological assets ] 750,288 5 1,029,643

The change in the historical value of blological assets and agricultural products measured at their falr
value presented decreases of 57 214, 432 016 in 200% and 2010, respectively, and an increase of 52 558 in
2011 Such effects were included in the results of inceme each year.,



[B] Prepaid expenses and other current assets-

Prepaid expenses are comprised as follows:

2010 2011
Advances to suppliers of inventory 5 366,160 5 515,672
Services 43,2440 125,158
Oitfver recelvabile LT 72,043
Insurances 17,961 38277
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets
5 505,114 % 752,150

(9} Property, plant and equipment-

a) Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2010 and 2011 consists of the following:

Useful lives
[years) 2010 2011
Bulldings and farm structures

20-40 5 ES911,833 & 8,100,778
Machinery and eguipment 7-15 7,156,921 7,454,119
Transportation equipment L7 1,158,660 1,107,951
ffice, furniture and sguipment 3 246,349 252170
17473, 763 17,915,058

Acournulated depreciation (8.157,372) (8,685,319)
9,316,391 9,229,739
Land 948,036 95E,890
Construction in progress 279,604 251,624
Total 5 10544031 & 10,440,253

b} Depreciation expense for the years ended Cecember 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, amounted to
$662,630, 5692,640 and 5726,061, respectively.

¢) As of December 31, 2010, the construction in progress amounting 279,604, has been placed in
service in 011,

d] As of December 31, 2011, the construction in progress amounting 5251624, are expected to be

placed in service in 2012,
e) Changes in property, plant and equipment, were as follow:



Offica,

Buildings Machinery furnitura
ane farm and Transport and Constructions in
structunes equipment equipment equipment Lard ProOgress Total
Balances at
December
31, 2000
& 5,005,067 3,730, 326 220,551 21,552 Q48,0346 2796045 10,544,031
Bogulsition 184,245 379,330 93,576 36,200 13,582 - J07 533
Sale of plart
and
- (1,147} [23,035) {44 £249) (30,422 {3,204) 127,979) [130,616)
Husiness
acquisition 19,501 25,343 1040 - 427 . 45,366
Dapredation {262,950} [345,963) {106,674} {10,474) [F26,061)
Balances at
Decamber
B¢ ge45311 3774801 162,724 46,856 958,336 751,625%
10,440,253
[10) Goodwill-

I 1999, gocdwill was derived from the purchase of the shares of Campl Alimentos, 5.4, de CV, In the
amount of 5359 564, At December 31, 2005 (the last year of amortization), accumulated amortization
aggregated to 558,716, In 2009, 2010 and 2011, goodwill was not amortized, but subject to impairment

test on an annual basis, s a result of the adoption of Mexican FRS B-7 “Business Acguisitions™ [see note
nk

(11} Other non-current asset-

Other nen-current assets conslst of

Advances far purchases of property, plant and equiprment
Investment in life insurance contracts (note 1 and 2[o])

Ivvestment I unconsolidated entity (note 1and 2{a))
Others

5

2010 2011
43290 § 185,091
- 118,792
- 38,020
21,593 21,734

G4.BE3 5 364,637




(12} Short and long-term debt-
al Shaort term debt, as of Becember 31, consist of tha following:

2010 2011

Unsecured:
Denominated in USD for an amount of 75,000 USD, maturing in October 2012,
at LIBOR (3] rate plus 0.60 points, Bachoco is guaranior of this delbt

5 - % 1,047,750
Denominated in pesos, maturing in January 2012, at TIE (1) plus 0.85 points
{mote 22{ii}) . 200,000
Denominated in pesos, maturing in August 2002, at THE [1) FIRA (2} plus 0.50
peoinits. - 30,000

Short term debt 5 - & 1277750

‘Weighted average interest rate on unsecured short-tarm debt at December 31, 2011, was 5.53 %.
The average interest rate on unsecured short-term for the years ended December 31, 2011 was 5 48%,
The weighted average interest rate on dollars unsecured short-term at December 31, 2011 was 0.8702%,

b} Long-term debt, as of December 31, consist of the following:

2010 2011
Unsecured:
Denominated in pesos, maturing in lune 2016, at TIE (1] rate plus 1 points.
5 - 5 360,000

Denominated in pesos, maturing in 2013, at TIE (1] rate plus 0,60 points,

- E7,500
Denominated in pesos, maturing in 2015 and 2016, at TIE (1) plus 1.00 points.

- 47,5713

Denominated in pesos, maturing in December 2013, at TIE (1) FIRA (2] rates
le=s 1.00 point. 38,133 26,400
Denominated in pesos, maturing in April 2015, at TIE [1) rate plus 0.95 points.
23,617 18,621
Denominated in pesos, maturing in April 2012 and June 2013, at TIE (1} FIRA {3)
rates less 1,10 points and 0,875 points. 0,730 17390
Denominated in pesos, maturing in March 2014, at TIIE (1) rate plus 2 points.

2,957 2,123
Denominated in pesos, maturing in July 2015, at TIHE (1) plus 1.50 points. 250,000 -
Denominated in pesos, maturing in April 2015, at THE (1) FIRA {2} rates plus
1.90 paints. 250,000 -
Denominated in pesos, maturing in June 2015, at THE (1] rate plus 2.50 points.
3E,9493 -
Denominated in pesos, maturing in June 2011, at TIE (1) FIRA{2} rates plus 2
points. 12,500 -
Total 644,920 550,613
Less current installments (135,867 [175,243)

Long-term debt, excluding current installments 5 507053 5 3B43ITO




In 2010 and 2011, the Company made prepayments of long-term debt of 5333,750 and 5538,993
respectively, without being reguired to pay early termination fee.

‘Weighted average interest rate on long-term debt at December 31, 2010 and 2011 was 6.32% and 5.58%,
respectively.

The average interest rate of the Company's total long-term debt for the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2011 was b.64%, and 6.17%, respectively.

E = Interbank Equilibrium Rate
R ericulture trust { Fideicomiso Instituido en Relacion cor culturg by its Spanish acronym

The weighted average interest rate of the Company’s total debt at December 31, 2010 and 2011 was
6,333 and 5.55%, respectivaly.

c) At December 31, 2010 and 2011, wnused lines of credit amounted to 52,047,339 and 52,257,870,
respectively, In 2010 and 2011, the Company did not pay any fee for unused lines of credit,
d) Maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Year Amount
2013 5 154,546
2014 97,797
2015 £9,537
2016 42,490
5 384,370

Interest expense on loans for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, aggregated to
566,989 452 903, and 540,687, respectively,

Bank loans establish certain affirmative and negative covenants. &5 of December 31, 2011 and April
30, 2012, the Company was in compliance with all these covenants,

{13-a} Financial Instruments and hedging activities as at Decamber 31, 2010 and 2011-

Derivatives for trading purposes [neither designated nor qualified for hedges accounting treatment)

The Company maintains a portfolio of explicit Financial Derivative Instruments (FOI), which were neither
designated nor gualified as hedges under FRS C-10 and, therefore, their related changes in fair value were
recognized as valuation effects of financial instruments within Comprehensive Financial Results [CFR], in
the results of income. The related fair value amount of the open balance as of December 31, 2000 and
2011, was 5(7.096) and 5[2,378), respectively, and irose from the derivative instruments, shown on the
following pages:



party Instrument Underlying® Notional Maturity

Morgan Eachange rate Several im
Stankey Furopaan optlans' MR/ LIS Us% lamuary 7011 5 11
Exchange rate Seyaral i
Kmack oul-knack in® MXPSUSD 54 Jamuary 3011 1154
Exchange rate Several m
Forwards MU US4 lamuary #11 13
Cosiatsche Exchange rate §150
Eank Krack in® [ R Us lamuary 511 [63)
santandar Furopean options” Exchange rate savaral in
MU 55 Jamuary )11 9
Forwards Exchange rate Several in
MR UED uss Jamuary #0111 41

5 18

“Owver the Counter (OTC): refers to privately agreed operations (outside of the standardized or organized
futures & options exchange markets such as CBOT] with other financial or non-financial parties

Enock out — Enock ini Ophion combimation that hedges up to a certan level of the exchange rabe, and
from another

level of the exchange rate respectively.

European options: dervatnee linanoal instruments under which the buyver has the right or the abligation
to

buy or sell a certain amount of a underlying asset in the future
WP means Thousands of Mexican Peso and USD means Thousands of LS, dollars



Derivatives an prices of farming qoods [comimodities b

Effects on the
result of
operations
CFRfloss (gain)
Counter-party Instrument Underlying Baturity
Jaruary-May

Cargill (QTC) Swags Corn 2011 L (2,568)

lanuary-May
SuBpa Sy besn 2011 {950)
Mew Edge” March 2011
American apkians Corn [735]
Klarch 2011

Futuras Com [,561)

5 (*,114)

New Edge is the broker or the commission agents for the futures or options on the futures, that the
Company used to enter into these operation in this listed CBOT market on comn and sovbeans forwards

Seenote 4, collaterals established by the broker Tor Bachooo,

As gt December 31, 2011;

Effects on
the results
of
Counter- operations
party Instrument Underlying’ Notional Marturity CFR/loss
(gain)

Exchange Several
Several Forwards rate in U5 lanuary 2012 i1,344)
MEPUSD

5 1,344

CQver the Counder (OTC): relers o prvately agreed aperations (ouiside of the standardized or organized
futures & options exchange markets such as CROT) with other financial or non-financial parties,

Knock out = knock in: Option combination that hedges up to a certain level of the exchange rate, and
from another bevel of the exchange rate respectnely,

European options: derivative financial instruments under which the buyer has the right or the obligation
to

buy or sell a certain amount of a underlying asset in the future

RAXE means Thoutands of Mexican Peso and LUSD means Thausands of LS, dollars



Derivatives on prices of forming goods {fcommodities k

Effects on
the result of
operations
CFR/loss
Counter-party Instrument Undearlying Maturity {Eain)
March-hay
Cargill (OTC) Swaps Carn 2012 5 {701}
March-
Swaps oy bean May 2012 [242)
New Edge’ American March
options Corn J012 | Fad)
Jefferies Bache American March
LLc options Corn 2012 7649

5 (1,034)

On Movember 1, 2011, the Company acquired OF Industries, Inc. As of this date, this enterprise had in its
financial derivative instruments position American eptions listed at CBOT, these options were acquired
through the broker Jefferies Bache, The fair value of those instruments amounted 5824 as of this date,
and for December 31, 2011 this options amounted a fair value of 5769, which represented a gain in
option’s fair value of 5125 that was recognized in eamings as of December 31, 2011,

Derivatives that are designated and qualify for hedging purposes attributable to (i) one or more risks
included in identified hedged items which are already recognized on the balance sheet or |ii) associated
te risk exposures not yet recognized on the balance shest,

In regard to the positions on FDI that the Company anters into and that were designated and gualify for
hedge accounting purposes on one or more financial risks, its fair value amounted to a total of 55,801 and
57,829 at December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectively. Following are the details on the derivative
instrurments found accessing special hedge accounting madels, their notional dimension, risks and effects,
either on the statement of financial position or in the statements of income. The derivatives mentioned
below offsel the effects of the hedged items within the statement of income, as long as they continue to
qualify and be designated for hedge purposes:

Fair value hedge: The Company has entered into a several firm commitments made through contractual
agreements with domestic farmers to purchase estimated grain crops dencminated in LS dollars at a
fiwed price, which constitute the hedged tems, The lang position in puts contracted through ASERCA only
hedges the risk arising from a decrease in grain prices, set through firm commitments. These put options
are designated in hedging relationships under the falr value hedge accounting rmodel, Effective changes in
fair value of grain crops associated with firm commitments attributable to price risk are recognized on the
statement of financial position as an asset or a liabilty until the contracted grain volumes are recognized

1



as inventory. Subsequently, these put options contracted through ASERCA are partly or fully re-designated
to hedge any changes in fair value of a portion of the acguired grain inventones in accordance with the
fair value hedge accounting model; that is, protecting against falls in grain prices by adjusting the carrying
amount of such inventory against cost of sales in the statement of income, and at the same time, the
pending effects derived from changes in fair value of the primary position, lodged in current assets or

current Habilitles during the primary position term, azalnst cost of sales, o a4 to adjust the inventory cost
for the effects as determined by the fair value hedging model,

Qptions listed on corn future, effective gt December 321, 2010

Effective offsetting
effects on
comprehensive
Counter-party Instrument Underlying Maturity finamcial
results/loss [gain)
ASERCA Puts Corr fdarch and
May 2011 e {5,801)
I il T
Effective offsetting
effects on
camprehensive
Counter-party Instrument Underlying Mlatu rity financial
results/loss [gain)
March and May
ASERCA Puls Carn 2012 ] [7,829]

Option type of dervatives entered under the ASERCA program are under the modality described in the
accounting policy.

Hedging effects on the price of grain associated with firm commitments and grain inventories

denominated in the Company’s non-functional eurrency (USD), that are recognized at their fair value
due to the price risk only, under the fair value hedge accounting model.

Due to the acquired 2010 and 2011 grain price variations, the hedging effects arising from the fair value
changes linked to the corn & sorghum” prices, accorcing to the fair value hedge model were recognized in
the consolidated staterment of financial position as a current liability or as an adjustment to the inventory,
both with correspondent offsetting effects against the option's intrinsic value changes within
comprehensive financial result in the consolidated staterment of Income,




At Decemnber 331, 2010

Graun snventones odjusted fo foir value .hen'gg":

Changes in the
lair value of the firm
LomEnitrent
Rizk covered and recogrized within the balance
Description secandary minui sheet
Firm Comimitments with a fix ASERCA, Puts that were e-designated as to hadge
price and LS denominated [o the Fair value of Commsadity grain inventories from
sorghum and corn kring fair walus, sttribulable to lower grain prices
purchases agresmenls
5 [5.800]
At December 31, 2011:
raim inventores gdiusted to foir value hrn‘gg?:
Chamges in the
Tair value of the firm
comemitmert
Rizk covered and recognized within the balance
Description secandany assigned shewt
Hrm Commitments with a fix ASERLS, Puts that were e-designated as to hedge
price and LUSD denominated to thee fair value of Commadity grain inventories from
Sorghain and com krsing fair valuwe, sribunable to lower grain prices
puirchiases agrasments
5 [7.829]
These represent contracts the Company enters into with an unrelated party that can be executer

through kegal means v Epee |_|_ he amount the Company expects to exchange the

PRI dNEE the transacthwon schedule, among other Important aspecls



[13-b) Investment in primary financial securities at December 31, 2010 and 2011-

The Company keeps investments in primary financial debt instruments and equity instruments at
December 31, 2010 and 2011, both in .5, dollars and Mexican pesos, as follows:

2010 2011
Book Fair Interest” Book Fair Interest”

For trading” valug walus rates valug valug rate
Pexican peso

danorminated

dabt securities:
Gawernrment

lezued 5 - - - 3 112,956 112 956 3.72%
Bank issued 2,150,010 3,150,010 501% 1,206,121 1206121 4.97%
Commarcial

paper 31,150 21,150 E.Z1% - - -
Rapo 203,410 203,410 4,55% T3, 732 82,732 4.46%

% 3,384,570 3,384,570 5 2,101,809 2,101,809

.5, dallars

denorminated

gabt securities:
Government

issued k3 as59 ang 0.27% 5
Commarcial

paper 13171 10121 B4 7,541 7.541 5.BE%

13,480 10 480 7,541 7.541

Tatal S 3,404,050 2,404,050 % 4,108,350 2,108,350




2010 2011
For trading” Book Fair Interest” Boak Fair Interest”
maturity over 90 days value walue rates wa bue value wa bue
Mexlcan pass
denaminated debt
sacurithes:
Governrment
issued 5 32,395 32,295 5.25% 5 40231 40,231 1.64H
Cuasi-Governrmental - - - 2,096 2096 515%
Commercial
paper FOAET FOAET 4.09% 287 287
% 107,882 102 8832 £ 42814 42 514
L5, dollars denaminatec
debt securitias:
Bank ismed 5 14533 14,553 S8 5 5,158 5,158 &.50%
Carnmercial
paper 91,873 91,873 7.31% 352,999 352,945 6.55%
106,466 106,468 358,107 368,107
Total 5 209,343 208,348 % 410,721 410,721
2010 2011
Book Fair Intarast” Book Fair Intarast ©
Held to maturity wanbue walbue rates value value wanbue
Pesas;
Cormmercial paper % 36,715 35,725 487% & 42,352 42 352 4805
2010 2011
For trading without Book Fair Book Fair
rratuwrity: walue value value value
5, dallars:
Equity instruments 5,124 5124
¥ 5124 5,124

The Company has diversified its investment portfalio into government, bank, corporate or commercial
instruments. These financial instruments have been classified by the Company into two categories: for
“trading” and “held-to-maturity” securities under Mex FRS C-2.

fs far as the primary financial instruments classified as trading securities are concerned, as of
December 31, 2011 the Company's investment is largely in bank instruments. Ninety-nine percent of



this imvestment is made in recognized national banking institutions, and the term of these investments
are three days (52% of the instruments), and twenty eight days [47% of the instruments),

As fior held-to-maturity securities, in May 2010, the Company acguired through a voluntary exchange
of debt certificates, 485,995 debt certificates issued by Tiendas Comercial Mesicana, 5.4, de CV,,

maturing in 2016, At the acquisition date, the Conpany made a declsion to classify such certificates as
“held-to-maturity securities” in accordance with Mex FRS C-2.

[14) Commitments and contingencies-
a) The Company has entered into operating leases for certain offices, production sites, and automative

and computer equipment. Most leases contan renewal options. These agreements have terms
between one and five years, Rental expense under these leases was as follows:

Year ended
December 31, Amount
2009 5 177,292
2010 187204
2011 1EE, 244

b) There i a contingent liability arising from the labor abligations mentioned in note 2q.
c) The Company is imvolved in a number of lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business.

d)

f)

In the opinion of management, it is expected that the final outcome of these matters will not have
significant adverse effects en the Company's consolidated financial pasition and results of income,

QK Industries, Inc. (foreign subsidiary) maintains self-insurance programs for health care costs and
wiorkers' compensation. The subsidiary is liable for health care claims up to 350 USD (34,830) each
year per plan participant and workers” compensation daims up to 600 USD (58,392) per ocourrence.
self-insurance costs are accrued based upon the ageregate of the liakility for reported claims and an
estimated liability for daims incurred but not reported. The allowance fior this concept is booked into
the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position within current liabilities and amouwnting
to 3,817 USD (553,323) at December 31, 2011 The consolidated statement of Income includes
expenses relating to self-insurance plans of approximately 1,087 USD [$15,325) for the two-month
period of the subsidiary ended December 31, 2011, Bachocoo is required to maintain letters of credit
on behalf of the subsidiary of 3,400 USD (34749E8) to secure self-insured workers compensation
payments,

Ok Industries, Inc. (foreign subsidiary) is involved in claims with the U.5. Department of Labor and the
.5 Immigration and Customs Enforcement, and various other matters incadental to its business,
including workers’ compensation claims and environmental issues. At December 31, 2011, the
subsidiary has accrued reserves for potential claims of 2,500 USD (534,925) which are included within
ather current liabilities.

In accordance with Mexican tax law, the tax authorities are entitled to examine transactions carried
out during the five years prior to the most recent income tax return filed.

g} The Company has agreed contracts to supply grain from third parties as part of the normal course of

h)

operations,

In accordance with the Income Tax Law, companies carrying out transactions with related parties are
subject to certain requirements as to the determination of prices, which should be similar to those
that would be used in arms-length transactions.

Should the tax authorities examine the transactions and reject the related-party prices, they could
assess additional taxes plus the related inflation adjustment and interest in addition to penalties of
up to 100% of the omitted taxes.



[15) Other taxes payable and other accruals-

Am analysis of other taxes payable and other accruals as follows:

2010 2011

Other accounts payable 5 35963 5 218,458
Expenses payabhe 148,357 158,481
Trade advances G, 159 71,212
M55 (1) 35,073 35,453
INFOMAVIT (3} 30,743 32,552
Employees statutory profit sharing 37,921 26,234
Payroll taxes 21,277 24 044
Salaries payable 4,524 9,168
SAR (2} 6,266 6,416
Taxes payvable 6,520 6,349
Interests payable 4849 5,315

Total 5 3372 5 594 662

{16} Foreign currency position and translation-

a) A summary of the Company’'s monetary assets and liabilities denominated in U5, dollars (the only
foreign currency] translated into reporting currency, as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, were as

follows:
Pesos
2010 2011

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3575933 5 232,211
Frimary financial instrurnents 106, 466 375,648
fccounts receivable - 391 857
Other accounts 6,926 315,037
Advances to suppliers 170,170 02,912

A41,4495 1,917,665
Liabilities:
fccounts payable {F70,931) [1,068,025)
Oither lizbilities - [157.110)
Short term debt - [1,047,750)

Met liability 5 |129.436) 5  (955,220)




b} &s of December 31, 2000 and 2011, the exciange rate was 512,37 and 513.97 per US dollar,
respectively, At Apnl 30, 2012, date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements the
exchange rate was 513,21 per US dollar.

c) As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, foreign exchange gains, net amounting to 511,082 and 554,505,
respectively, wera recorded,

d) At December 31, 2011 the Company Bad the foreign exchange hedging Instruments
mentioned in note 13a.

e} L5 dollar is the recording and functional currency of the foreign subsidiary. This foreign currency was
translated into Mexican peso that i the consolidated reporting currency.

(17} Labor obligations-

aj Labor obligation in Mexico

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering non uwnionized personnel in Meaxico, The
benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s compensation, The Company makes annual
contributions to the plan egual to the maximum arrount that can be deducted for Income Lax purposes
based on the projected unit credit method.

Plan contrbutions and benefits pald were as follows:

Plan Contributions Benefits paid
2009 2010 11 2009 2010 2011
Retirement $ 17,436 14,039 15,099 2,382 2,934 3,049

The cost, obligations and other elements of the pension, seniority premium and severance compensation
plans for reasons other than restructuring, mentiened in note 2q, have been determined based on
computations prepared by independent actuaries at December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 The components
of the net periodic cost for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, were as follows:

Benefits
Termination Retirement
2009 2010 2011 2009 2010 2011

Wat perodic cost-
Sarvice cogt 5 13 BaE 14,720 17,346 & 16,187 18 962 20 380
Intarast cost 220 5,605 6476 H0043 22,453 21,750
Return on plan

assets - - = (15,2307 [X2,508) [25818)
Met actuanal lass

(gain) 7471 24,507 (B77) {1,987] [1,816) {1,775}
Frior service cost:
Armartization af

prior service cost

and plan

medifications - - - 1.585 1,885 1,885
Armartization of

transition lahility 4 828 4,828 4. 667 & A48 5448 5448

Met periodic

cost 5 32117 S, 7 50 28312 5 £2.274 28,424 21,842




The present value of benefit obligations of the plans as of December 31, 2009, 2000 and 2011, is as

fallows:
Banefits
Terminatian Retirement
2009 2000 2011 2009 2010 2011
Acumulated Benefit Obligation
[ABO) 4 B 328 91,255 B4 702 % 151,708 152 737 168920
Projected Benefit Obligation
{PEO] 76,083 95,116 1i1,140 240,968 775,550 295 451
Plan assat at Fair value (223,77 [255,382) [250,855)
Prajected benefit abligation
over plan assets Mo, 5838 95,216 101,140 17,150 19,168 (11,424}
Unrecognized [tems:
Trarsitien liability {13,542 {8714} {4,047) {1E,345) {10,896 (5, 348)
Flan modifications - - [£3.552) 121,867 {19,783}
Actuarial geing - - - 53,800 53,350 B1649
Projected liability, net £ G3 445 BE,502 g7008 o 31,183 38 055 44 995
Benefits
2008 2010 2911
Discount rate {net of inflation) 9,50 5,000 8.50%
Rate of compensation incragse® 4 505 1. 500 4.50%
Expectad raturn on plan assets S, Foi 8,005 9,50%
Amartization period of unrecognized
items |applicable to retiremant banefit] 19,33 years 15,006 yaars 11.89 afos
| 1 P udi I tren n market and con e ary
n | I peertarm zatis |
Below |5 the determination of benefit abligations of the plan at December 31, 2009, 2000, and 2011;
Retirement benefits 2009
Sandority Pension plan
premium
Defined benefit obligations:
Dbligations of definad
benefits at the beginning of year A 32,980 177,335 210,315
Current labor cost 3,034 13,153 1,187
IFnterest ooat 3,130 16,913 20,043
Actuarial gain and losses 1,43% [2.835) (1,387
Benefits paid 11,801] [2,3E3] 4, 184]

Cefined benefit obligations at end
af pear & 38,782 202,185 240,068




Defined benefit obligations:
Obligations of definad

benefits at the beginning of year

Current labor cost
Interest oot

Actyuarial gain and lossas
Benefits paid

Defined benafit abligations at end

of yaar

Defined benafits obligations:

Obligation af defined banefit 8t the baginning of year

Current labor cost
Interest cost

Actuarial galm and losses
Benefits paid

Defined benefit abligations at end

of year

Retirement banefits 2010

Below is the determination of plan assets at 31 December 2004, F010 and 2011:

Plan assats;

Plan aseat at the beginning af year

Yiekl axpected

actuarlal galn and lossas
Compary cantributions
Benefits pald

Plan assets at end of year

Plan assats:

Flan asset at the baginning of year

fleld expected
Actuarial gain and losses
Company Contributicns
Benefits Paid

Man assets at end of year

Saniority Pensian
premium plan Total
% 3E,7E2 02,186 240, 568
1675 15287 15 962
3574 1B B79 22 453
1.523 13,809} 12,286)
[1,613] {2,934} {4,547)
5 45841 229,509 275,550
Retirerment benefits 2011
Seniority Pension plan
[T L Total
5 45,542 279,608 275,551
4.192 16,188 20,380
8,585 18,134 21,10
{15,750) {57,718} {73,468}
{1,703} |3,040) i4,751]
] 36,167 203,154 239,431
Retirement benefits 2009
Saniarity
premium Pension plan Total
1EB E15 1EB B15
12,307 12307
BO2 B0z
17,435 17,4365
(2,382) (2,382)
223 778 723 778
Retiremant banefits 2010
Lenigrity Pension plan
premiurm Tatal
233,778 243,778
22507 22,507
{1,008) {1,008)
14059 14,035
|2,534) |2,534)
A5G 387 256387




Retirement benefits 2011

Saniority Pension plan
PRI T Tatal
Flam assats:
Plan asset at the beginning of year L . 156,382 256,382
Theld expected - 25,816 25816
Actuarial gains and lasses - (43, 392) (a3 392)
Company contributions - 15,100 15,100
Benefits paid - {3,051) {3,051)
Flan assets at end of year L - 250 B55 250,855

Followang is a detailed description of the current amounts and the amounts for the previous four annual
periods derived from the defined benefit obligations, the reasonable value of the plan’s assets and the
adjustments on the plan assets and liabilities, based on experience:

Seniortiy premium®
2007 2008 2003 2010 2011
Defined benefit
obligations 5 96,601 1 BB, 711 B3 RT1 76,382
Plan assets - - - - -
Plan status 5 96,601 1 BB, 711 B3 RT1 76,382
| | nearl I 1 Nl I I 1 that
| i I s in rdan i b Bu i
Pension plan
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Dafined banafit
ohligations 5 199,333 177339 202,186 228,609 203,164
Plan amets {182,017 [188,815) (223, 778) (255, 382} |250,855)
Flam status 4 17,316 {11,476) {21,592) (26,773 (47,631)

The distribution of assats listed by category at the end of 2009, 2010 and 2011, are as follows:

2009 2010 2011

Fixed rate investment TEH Toi o
Variable rate investreent 25% 25% 30%
Tatal 10053 100 hliiy

The distribution of the assets reflects the strategy that was used to optimize the return rate on the plan
and the fund's results, within the framework of an appropriate risk level.



b} Benefit plans in foreign operation
OF Industries, Inc. [foreign subsidiary] maintains a 401(k) retirement plan [defined benefit plan)
covering all employees meeting certain aligibility requirements, The Company contributes to the plan
at the rate of 50% of employees contributions up to a maximum of 2% of the individual employess
compensation. Expense for contributions accrued to this plan was 33,7 USD {5471) for the two-month
period ending December 31, 2011,

O Industries, Inc. (foreign subsidiary) maintains a deferred compensation arrangement with certain
key employees. Amounts payable under this plan vest 10 years from the date of the agreement. The
benefit value of sach unit is equal to the increase in initial subsidiary book value from the date of the
agreement to the conclusion of the wvesting period. Under the agreement, 275000 units wera
cutstanding on December 31, 2011, all of which were fully vested., Amounts expected to be paid
within the next year of 657.7 USD (39,189} are included in other current labilities. The remaining
liability is 411.8 USD {45,753} under this plan. There was no compensation expense for the two-
month pericd ending December 31, 2011,

(18] Stockholders' Equity-

a) As of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Company's capital stock is represented by S00,000,000
“B* shares with a par value of 51 peso each. Al shares issued and outstanding have voting rights,

b) In 2008, 2010 and 2011, the Company declared and paid cash dividends at nominal values of 5250,045,
5250,082 and 5299,926, respectively, or 50.42, 50,42, and 50.50 respectively, per share in nominal
P05,

e)  The Mesican Corporation Law reguires that at beast 5% of each year's net income be appropriated to

increase the legal reserve until such reserve is equal to 20% of capital stock issued and outstanding.
The balance of the legal reserve at Decembar 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, included in retained
earnings, was $209,399,

d] The Company approved a stock repurchase plan in 1998, in conformity with the hdexican Securities
Trading Act, providing a stock repurchase reserve for that purpose of 5180000 [5303,861 expressed
in constant Mexican pesos at December 31, 2007) through the appropriation of retained earnings in
1998, In 2009, the Company repurchased and sold 147 thousand of shares, The repurchase valuee was
for 51,880 and the sales value was for 52,959, resulting in a gain of 51,079, recorded as additional
paid in capital, During 2010 the Company repurchased 200 thousands of shares for 55,167; in 2011,
the Company repurchased 2574 thousands of shares, The repurchased value was Tor 56,153, and
sales 230 thousands of shares, the sales value was for 55,944, There are 227 4 thousands of shares
held by treasury at Decernber 31, 2011,

e} The Company is reguired to pay taxes on dividends distributed to stockholders only to the extent that
the payment made exceeds the balance of the "net tax profit account™ [CUFIN], which s used to
control earnings on which income tax has already been paid. Income tax paid on dividends refers to a
tax payable by corporate entities and not by individuals,

fi The Company obtains the majority of its revenues and net profit from Bachoco, 54, de CV,
(“BSACYY), For the years 2009, 2010 and 2011, pretax income of BSACY, represented approximately,
92%, 93%, and 8&% respectively of Bachoco's net revenues.

Dividends on which BSACY has paid income tax will be credited to the Company's "CLUFIN" account
and, accordingly, no further Income tax will be paid when such amounts are distributed as dividends
to the Company's stackholders.

gl From 15999 through 2001, under Mexican income tax law, corporate taxpayers were extended with the
eption of deferring payment of a portion of their annual corporate Income tax, 5o that the tax rate
will represent 308, The earnings on which taxpayers opted to defer payment of a portion of
corporate income tax had to be controlled ir the so-called "net reinvested tax profit account”
(CUFINRE].



Since the Company opted for this tax deferral, earnings will be considered to be distributed first from
the CUFINRE and any excess will be paid from the "net tax profit account” balance (“CUFIN"] 50 as to
pay the 5% deferred tax, The option to defer a portion of the annual corporate income tax was
aliminated effective lanuary 1, 2002.

h} Stockholders contribution restated as provided for by the tax law [CUCA), aggregating 52,244,455, may
be refunded to stockholders tax-free, to the extent that such contribution equals or exceeds
stockholders' equity.

[13) Income Tax [IT), Asset Tax |AT], and Flat Rate Business Tax (IETU) and Employee Statutory Profit Sharing
[ESPS)-

Under the current tax legislation in Mexico, companes must pay the greater of their IT or IETLL IF IETU is
payable, the payment will be considered final (e, not subject o recovery In subsequent years),

aj Income tax [IT)}-

The Company and each of its subsidiaries file separate income tax returns {including its foreign
subsidiary, that files income tax returns in the LS, based on its existing tax year end of April).
Bachoco, 5.4, de CV. BSACY, the Company's principal operating subsidiary, is subject to corporate
income tax under the provisions of the simplified regime, which is applicable to companies engaged
exclusively In agriculture, cattle-raising, fishing, forestry and other activities, The income Lax law
establishes that such regime is exclusive for companies that obtain no more than 1060 of their total
revenues from the production of processed products; BSACY has complied with this criteria,

In 2009, & tax reform was authorized by which, beginning in 2010, the tax rate s increased from 19%
to 21% in the simplified regime. The result of this change is recognized in 2009, az a charge of
5188,754, which is reflected in deferred taxes under the iterm "Adjustment to deferred tax assets and
liabilities for enacted changes in tax laws and rates”,

The simplified regime establishes that the taxable base for income tax is determined on revenues
collected net of deductions paid (cash basis]. The tax rate for this regime swas 19% for 2009 and 21%
for 2010 and thereafter,

The IT rate of the general regime for fiscal years 2010 to 2012 iz 30%, for 2013 the rate shall be 29%
and for 2014 and thereafter is 28%.

The income tax rate of the foreign subsidiary is 38.79%.

b) Flat Rate Business Tax (|[ETU}-
The IETU rate is 17.5% for 2010 and thereafter {17% for 2009} based on cash flows and limits certain
deductions,

IETU credits are derived mainly fram the unamortized negative IETU base, and salaries taxes for T
purposes and social security contributions, as well as credits derived from the deduction of certain
investments, such as inventories and fixed asset:,

The IETU is required to be paid only when it is greater than the T. To determine the [ETU payable,
income tax paid in a given period shall first be subtracted from the current IT of the same perod and
the difference shall be the IETU payable.

If negative IETU base is determined because deductions exceed income, there will be no IETU
payable. The amount of negative base multiplied by the |[ETU rate results in a IETU credit, which may
be applied against IT for the same year or, if apphicable, against IETU payable in the next ten years.,
fAccording to the tax law, the IETU credit can not be applied against [T for 2000 and 2011,



c) Asset tax [AT)-
In 2007, a new law was enacted that resulted in the derogation of the AT Law beginning on lanuary 1,
2008, In 2007, the asset tax rate was payable at 1.25% and liabilities were no longer deductible from

the asset tax base,

At December 31, 2011, the Company had 55,044 in Asset Tax credits and such recoverable AT will
axpire, as follows:

Asset tax
restated at
December 31, Year of
Base year 2011 expiration
2005 3 1,615 2015
2006 3,429 2016
3 5,044

d} Income tax charged to operations-
For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 znd 2011, income tax (credited) charged to results of
cperations was as follows:

2009 2010 2011
Mexican speration:
Current income tax L 103482 % 435838 % 69,578
Flat rate business tax M 18 8
Deferred imcome tax 302,505 7568 (109, 221)
406,356 503,415 {39,635)
Forelgn operation:
Current income kax L - L - 4 -
Deferred Income tax - - {895}
- - (Bas)

Total |benelit) income tae expense 5 406,358 5 503,415 & (40,5300




Income tax and employee statutory profit shasing expense attributable to income before income
taxes differed from the amounts computed by applying the Mexican statutory IT rates of 19% for
2008 and 21% for 2000 and 2011, respectively and 108 employes statutory profit sharing to income,
as a result of the items shown in the next paga:

Computed “expected”
tax expense
Add ESPS expense
Increase {decraase) in
imcome tases resulting
from:
Effects of inflation, nat
Mon-daductible
EXPENSEL
Adjustment ta
defarred tax assets
and liakilities for
enacted changas in
tax lawrs and rates
Subsidiarias not
subject to labar
ohligations
Effect of companias
outside simplified
regime
Change in the
valuation allowance
for deferred tax
assets
Other, nat

IT and E5P5 expense
|barefit)

&) Deferred income tax-

2011
o ESPS 14 ESPS I ESPs
230,927 121,540 § 522,846 48,974 § 24,908 11,860
. 2,300 - 3,383 - 2,160
{50,596] {66,504] (71,189) -
4,538 183 8032 1,672 3,411 1,052
186,754
(92.651) (26341} - Taar
38,163 31,661 33,073 -
8,130 . 17,164 [32,312) -
(13,558) £39 (9,754| 5,22 1,579 (651)
406,358 33001 % 503415 33,656 3 (40,530) 21,598

Based on the financial projections of taxable income, the Company estimated that it will pay income
tax (IT); therefore, deferred tax effects as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 have been recorded

reflecting the IT basis.
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The components of the Company's deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2000 2011

Deferrad tax assets

Accounts payable 5 453,645 & B9, 678

Labar obligations 33,407 58 681

ESFS payable 11,311 9,002

Effects on derfvative firancial instruments 1,635

Recoverable AT 4,850 5,044

Tax hoss carryforwards 17,695 96,773

COthers 1,006 -

Tatal gross deferrad tax assets 563,561 B£19,158
Less valuation allawance 53,300 20,997

Mat daferred tax asials 510,752 798,161
Defarrad tax liabilities:

Inventonas B4Z, 76T 1,056,327

Accounts receivabla 190,052 204,213

Property, plant and equipment, net 1,450,153 1,263 858

Other deductions 16,370 20,210

Effects on darivative financial instrurmants - 1,704

Total gross deferred tax liabllities 2.539,402 2,545,353

et deferrad tax liability g 2029150 % 1,747 192

Defarrad fax assets-foreign subsidiary 7 . g 174,141
Deferred tax liability-Mexican subsidiaries 5 2.029,150 § 1,921,333

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of Janwary 1, 2010 and 2011 amounted to 536,145 and
553,309, respectively, The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2010 and 2011, was an increase of 58,130, 317,184 and a deorease of 532,312, respectively. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some porticn or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment,



f} Tax boss carryforwards-
fs of December 31, 2011, the Company has tax loss carnyforwards restated in accordance with the

current Mexican Tax Law, which can be used to affset future taxable income in the next ten years, as

fiollowrs:
Tax loss carrylorwards as adjusted by inflation through
December 31, 2011

¥ear of Restated

Base year expiration Amount
o7 oz 5 3251
J008 2018 48 164
2009 20159 12533
2010 2030 530
2011 2021 380,961

5 445,839

g} Equity tax value-
As of December 31, 2000 and 2011, the tax value of the Company's equity, which will not be subject
o taxation, comprised the fallowing:

2010 11
Restated contribution capital {CUCA) % 2162080 & 2,204 455
Met tax profit account (CUFIN] and nat reimvestad tas profit
pccaunt (CUFIMEE] 4,203,271 4,194 245
Tetal L 6,365,301 & 6,438, 700

h) Employee statutory profit sharing
Industrias Bachocoo, 548 de CV, and BSACY hase no employvees, but each of the subsidiaries of the
Company in Mexico that has emplovess is required under Mexican law te pay employess, in addition
to their compensation and benefits, statutory profit sharing in an aggregate amount equal to 104 of
such subsidiary’s taxable income subject to cartain adjustments.

{20) Other income |expense], net-
A5 of Decermber 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, other income and expense net, were as follows:

2009 2010 2011
Othar imoome:
Sales of waste animals, raw material, by-
praducts and athers 5 139,555 35 154, T3 5 202,780
Tax incentives 5,496 - .
Total other incorme 145,051 154,779 202,780
Other axpenss;
Cost of waste animals, raw
material, by- products and other 1163,957) 1173,438) 1195, 707)
Employee statutony profit sharing (23,001} (23,656) (21,588)
Others (14, 282) (82,5862 [56,396)
Total other expeanse (210, 240) (290,054) {271 701)
Total other BApariLa, nat 5 I-EE.IEE:I 5 [95._3153 -s Imml
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(21} Segment financial information-

a) Product line segments

The segments to be reported are organized by gecgraphic operation and product line. Inter-segment
transactions have been eliminated, Our Poultry segment is comprised of ouwr chicken and egg products
due to their similarity in risks and benefits, The Information induded under “Others” corresponds to pigs,
balanced animal feed and ather non-significant sub-products. The segment information is as shown in the

next page:
As of and for the year ended at December 31, 2009
Poultry Others Total
Met revenuas 5 20,567,944 2,694,906 23,262 850
Cost of sales (16,900, 540] (2,426,219) {19,326,759)
Gross profit 3,667,404 26B,6E7 3,936,091
Interest income 149,160 21,4495 170,655
Valuation effects of financial instruments (174,603) - {174 603)
Interest and financial expenses (F7.052) (14,274] [91.326)
Incirme taxes (370,734) (35,624] {406,358)
Met contralling interest income 702,344 45 155 757 600
Property, plant and eguipment, net 10,453 381 413 601 10,865,982
Goodwill, net 212,833 BEO15 300,848
Total assets 18,706,330 1,171,549 19,877,879
Total liakilities 4,817,238 422,178 5,239,416
Capital expenditures B13,628 130,478 944,106
Expenses not requiring cash disbursement:
Depreciation and amaortization 621,324 41,306 GE2,630
Az of and for the year ended at December 31, 2010
Poultry Others Total

Met revenues 5 13239 505 2,485,951 24,715,458
Cost of sales (17,377,538} [2,122.7359) (19,500,677
Gross profit 4,851,567 363,212 5214779
Interest income 154,203 11,443 165,640
Valuation effects of financial instruments 18,850 - 18,850
Interast and financial expenses (65,007 18.512) {73,519)
Income taxes (463,616) (39,795} 1503415}
Met controlling interest (loss) income 1,596,160 90,166 1,986,326
Property, plant and equipment, net 10,240,120 03,911 10,544,031
Goodwill, net 21} B33 Ba,015 300,848
Total assets 20,109,011 1,088,757 21,197,768
Total liabilities 4,407 236 422,178 4829414
Capital expenditures 204 675 12,621 517,296

Expenses not requiring cash disbursement: - -
Deprecation and amortization 664,054 28,586 G072 GAD




Met revenues
Cost of sakes

Gross profit
Interest income

‘Valuation effects of financial instruments

Interest and financial expenses

Income taxes

Met controlling Interest income

Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill, net

Total assets

Total liabilities

Capital expenditures

Expenses not requiring cash disbursement:
Depreciation and amortization

As of and for the year ended at December 31, 2011

Revenues from our poultry segment are analyzed a5 lollows:

Met revenues

Net revenues

Net revenues

b) Geographic operating segments

Paultry Others Tatal
24,697,212 3,037,718 27,734,950
[22,075,071) (2,698,145) |24,773,216)
2,622,141 339,633 2,961,774
182,400 11,377 193,777
(836 - (836
(58,327) [11,417] [69,744)
[13,135] [27,395) [40,530)
65,502 91,539 157,041
10,044,310 395,943 10,440,253
212 833 28,015 300,848
21,832,440 1,337,434 23,169,874
(6,370,017) [530,751) (6,900, T68)
662,000 45,524 Tay533
03, 740 22,321 726,061
#As of and for year ended at
December 31, 2009
Chicken Eggs Total
18,211,109 2,356,815 20,567,944
Az of and for year ended at
December 31, 2010
Chicken Eggs Total
20,127,721 2,100,784 22,229,505
#As of and for year ended at
December 31, 2011
Chicken Eggs Iotal
22,611,264 2,085,948 24,697,212

A5 of 2011, with the acquired operation in the United States, it incorporated a new segment at the
management approach named “foreign® to identify (segment) the national and foreign operations. When
submitting information by geographical area, the revenues are classified based on the geographical
location of the customers, The assets of the segments are classified regarding the geographical location of

assets,
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A5 of and for the year ended at December 31, 2011

Foreign
Poultry [two-
Maticnal menths Total
Poultry ration Poultry

Meat revanues 3 25 118 43% 1378, TT9 24,607 212
Cost of salas |20,772.407] (1,302 664) [32,075,071)
Grass profit 2,546,026 76,115 2,622,141
Interast incorma 183,400 - 183,400
veluation effects of financial instrurments (EBE] - {BaG)
Interast and financial expanses |58,164] (163] (58,327)
Income taxas (12,240) (895 [13,135)
Met contralling interest incorme 68,160 {2,658) 65,502
Froparty, plant and equipmeant, net 10,428,265 12,045 10,440,310
Goadwill, nat 212,833 - 213 B33
Total assats 19,383, 780 1,848 560 21,832,440
Total lizbilities (5,330,667 {539,350) (6,370,017)
Capital expendituras 562,009 - 662,009
Expenses not requiting cash disbursement;

Cepraciation and armartization 703,606 134 703,740

fs of and for year ended at
December 31, 2011
Mational Foreign Chicken Total
Chicken [bwo-months
operation]
Met revenues 5 71,232 485 1,378,779 22,611,264

[22) Subseguent events-

{1} Migration to Intermational Financial Reporting Standords (IFRS)

In January, 2009, the Mexican National Banking and Securities Commission (Comision Nacional Bancaria v
de Valores “CNVE"] in Mexico revised its “General Provisions applicable to Securities |sseers and other
Securities Market Participants” to require that certain public entities reporting financial information
through the Mexican Stock Exchange ("BRVY), beginning 2012 are required to prepare and report their
financial information wnder International Financal Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (LASE).

In this regard. the consolidated financial statements to be issued by the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2012 will be its first annwal financial statements complying with IFRS as issued by the JASE,
The transition date for adoption will be on lanuary 1, 2011, & brief description of the main changes of the

Company’s accounting policies impacted by the IFRS adoption, are listed below:

aj Property, Plant and Equipment - The Company has taken the “Deemed Cost™ option at the transition
date by applying the fair walue option for certain property, plant and equipment at December, 2011,
according to IFRS 1 “First time adogtion of Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards”.

b) Employee Benefits - Severance acorual has been written-off since such liability does not meet the

requirement required by the accounting standard 185 19 “Employee Benefits®,



c) Stockholders' equity — The adjustment that will ke recognized at the transition date will be accounted

for against retained earnings,

d) Inflation effects - According te 1A% 29 “Finencial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Ecomomies”,

accumulated inflation effects recognized in periods that do not gualify as hyperinflationary in
accordance with IFRS will be eliminated from the equity accounts against retained earnings, such as
capital stock, additional paid-in-capital, and reserve for repurchase of shares.

e} Deferred Income Tax - Deferred income taxes were accounted for the adpstments that were initially
recagnized in the financial statements caption at the transition date to IFRS,

fi Business combination - The Company has taken the option provided by IFRS 1, thus will not apply IFRS

3 retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS.

Best estimated Information regarding the significant changes in captions of the Company's financial
statements impacted by the IFRS adoption at January 1, 2011 {transition date) are listed below. The
Company is in the process to determine the significant changes in main captions of the financial
statement at December 31, 2011 as they are currently obtaining all complementary information to
determine the final effects at such date, however, the Company estimates that such effects will not

change significantly:

January 1, 2001

ASSETS

Current assats

Property, plant and equipment, net
Other non current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current Habilities
Long term debt
Labor obligations
Deferred income tax

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital Stock

Additional paid- in capital
Retained eamings

Other equity captions
Total stockholders' equity

ii) Shart-term debt payment

note

d
d

c.d

d

Adjustment at

MEX FRS transiion date IFRS
4 0537718 3% . 9,537,718
10,544,031 {403,563} 10,140,468
1,116,019 - 1,116,019
& 21197768 & {403,563} 20,794,205
5 2,166,754 5 2,166,754
507,053 . 507,053
126,457 {69,353) 57,098
2,029,150 {71,732) 1,957 418
& 4829414 35 {141,001) 4,688,323
& 2,294,927 & {902,051) 1,392,876
744,753 (286,244) 458,509
13,122,387 987,031 14,109,418
206,287 [61,208) 145,079
& 16,368,354 5 {262,472} 16,105, 882

On January 25, 2012, the Company paid the debt of $200,000 menticned in note 12a.

iy Stockholders meating

At the stockholders meeting held on April 25, 2002 the stockholders approved, among athers:

a- Ratification of the membership of Board of Directors.
b-  Dividend decree of S0.50 per share in nominal pesoes,
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[23] Differences bebtween Mexican Financial Reporting Standards and United States Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles

The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Mexican Financial
Reporting Standards ["MexFR5"], which differ in certain respects from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States {"LL5, GAAP").

The principal differences between hexFRS and U5 S38AF, as they relate to us, are described below with
an explanation, where appropriate, of the method wsed to determine the adjustments that affect net
income and stockhoblders” equity, or additional disclosures as applicable.

Business Combination
OF Industries acquisition

Bachoco applies the purchase method as the zole recognition alternative for a business combination by
allocating the purchase price to all assets acquired and labilities assumed based on their estimated fair
values as of the acquisition date,

Az it 15 mentioned in note 1 “Significant transaction”, to the consolidated financial statements, on
Mevember 1, 2011 the Company acguired 100% percent of the voting stock of OK Industries, Inc, the
aggregate purchase price that was paid in cash, amounted to 93,400 thousand US0.

&5 of December 31, 2011 Bachoco was in the process of allocating the fair values to the assets acquired
and liabities asurmed, The consolidated financial stalements of Bachooo indude the balance sheet of OK
Industries, Inc., as of December 31, 2011, based on the best estimate of its net asset’s fair value as of the
acuisition date, and its results of operations for the two-moenth pericd ended December 31, 2001 The
fair values of these net assets acquired were determined using the cost and market approaches. The
following summarizes the difference hetween the purchase price and the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired at the purchaze data:

Allocated to: Us GAAP LIS UsGAAPR
dollars pesos

Cash and cash equivalents 3 21 5 283
Accounts recelvable 25,051 3441,443
Inventories &9 BRY 949 5128
Refundable income taxes 294 12,155
Cther current assets 2,234 30,353
Property, plant and equipment 134 649 1653 BEl
Investment in life insurance contracts 2539 34 505
Investment in unconsalidated entity 2,722 36,993
Other leng-term receivable B,024 E1,Bii
Total assets acquired 234,003 3,180,106
Accounts payable i14,985] (203,631)
Other current liabilities 113,303) (130,773)
Deferred compensation lability 14132) {5,597)
Deferred income taxes (38,206) 1519,189)

Total liabilithes assurmed i, 906) [9049,190)
Moncontrolling interest in consolidated entity {516) {7,025)
Met assets acquired 166,581 2,263 891
Less cost to acquire 93,400 1,269,306
Gain on bargain purchase 3 73181 & 954,585




Under MexFRS B-7 “Business acquisitions”, if the fair value of net assets acquired exceeds the aggregate
purchase price amount (bargain purchase), then the fair value of the net assets value shall be adjusted up
to the purchase price amount as it is considered the fair wvalue of the transaction between two

independent parties in a free market.

Adjustment to the fair value of the net assets acquired should be applied by reducing the fair value of
certain assets until exhausting its value in the following order: a) firstly, intangible assets, b) then, long-
term monetary assets as property, plant and equipment, and c) finally, any other long-term assets as
permanent investments. Onoe the fair value of sudh asset is exhausted the remaining amount, if any,
should be recognized as a gain on bargaln purchase in the income staternent on the acquisition date,

In accordance with the provision of MexFRS B-7, the Company reduced the fair value of the property,
plant and equipment and the related deferred income taxes up to the amount of the gain on bargain
purchase (5994,585 (73,181 thousand USD]).

For LS GAAF purposes, ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, mentions that occasionally, an acguirer
will make a bargain purchase, which is a business combination in which the fair value of the net assets
acquired exceeds the aggregate purchase price amount, If thal excess remalns after the acquirer, reassess
whether it has correctly ientified and determined the fair value of all assets acquired, and liabilities
assumed, any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, any previously held equity interest in the
acquired entity, and the consideration transferred, then the acguirer shall recognize the resulting gain in
aarnings on the acguisition date, The gain shall be attributed to the acquirer, Therefore, for L%, GAaAP
purposes, the Company recognized in earnings the amount of 994,585 (73,181 thousand USD) as a gain
on bargain purchase.

For U5 GAAP purposes, the Company recognized in the 2011 income statements, a deprecation expense
of 518,546 and a deferred tax benefit of 57,000 related to the depreciation of the fair values assigned to
property, plant and equipment that come from OK Industries, Inc. acquisition,

Moreover, an additional amount of 527,535 related to translation effect of foreign subsidiary (DK
Industries, Inc.) was recognized for L5, GAAF purposes in other comprehensive income, to reach a total
amount of 563,171 related to such translation effect of forelgn subsidiary (335,636 recognized under Mex
FRS}

In addition, Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2010-29 “Business Combination {Topic B05) Disclosures
of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business Combinations,” requests to public entities that
presents comparative financial statements to disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as
though the business combination that occurred during the current year had been as of the beginning of
the comparable prior annwal reporting period, ASU also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures
to include a description of the nature and amount of material, nenrecurring pro forma adjustments
directly attributable to the business combination, This unaudited disclosure s shown as follow:

Combinad Figures
Thousands USD Thowsards IS0
lan 1, through Jam 1, through
Docamber 31, December 31,

200 |Unaiidite ) 2014 (Urauselived)

Rasults of cparations;

Met Sales & 2,382,735 % 2605050
Cparating income 128,941 214707
Ml incorsa SE, 916 157,939

Mo proforma adjustments were deemed necassary by the Company,
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Effects of inflation

MexFRS B-10 “Effects of inflation” (applicabile for vears beginning on or after January 1, 2008), supersedes
Bulletin B-10 of MexFRS “Recognition of the effects of inflation an the financial information®, and its fifth
amendment documents as well as the related drculars and Mexican Interpretation of Financial Reporting
Atandards. The main consideration established by this MexFRS is the recognition of the effects of inflation
when an entity operates in an inflationary economic envirenment [defined as when cumulative inflation
aver the immediately preceding three year period s equal to or greater than 26%] applicable as from
lanuary 1, 2008. Therefore, the last restatement factor applied to financial statements for the year ended
December 2007 was 1.0376, which corresponds to the annual rate of inflatson from December 31, 2006 to

December 31, 2007, based an the Mexican Mational Consumer Brice Index (NCPI1) published by Banco de
Mexico.

The reconciliation to U5 GAAF does nol include the reversal of the adjustments to the financial
statements for the effects related to the inflation required under MexFRS because the application of
MexFRS B-10 represents a comprehensive measure of the effects of price level changes in the Mexican
economy and, as such, it is considered a more meaningful presentation than hstorcal cost base owver
financial reporting for both Mesican and U5, accounting purposes as permitted by the “Securities and
Exchange Commission” (SEC].

Cash flow infermation

MesFRS B-2 “Statement of cash flow™ was revised and changes are effective beginning lanuary 1, 3010,
The changes in the presentation were recognized retrospectively and are related to "available on
demand-investment” that should be highly liquid (orginal maturities of three months or less).

At December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, restricted cash amounting to 58270, 52,239, and 51641
respectively, are being reclassified for U5, GAAP purposes from the line-item “cash and cash equivalents”
to “restricted cash”, within investing activities, since such restricted cash does not meet the definition of
cash equivalents according to FASE ASC Topic 230 Stotement of cosh flows [SFAS 95 Statement of cash
flows).



Consolidated statements of cash flows derived from information prepared in accordance with LL5, GAAP

would be as presented as follows:

Cazh Flow Information

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Met incorne under LS, GAAP

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
rat cash provided by (wsed in) operating
Betivities

Depreciation
Bargain purchase
Defarred income tax

Unreallzad loss [galn} on dervathve financial
instrurments

Fareign exchange lass on loans
Lags on sale of property, plant and equiprment

Labor obligations, net period cost

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts recelvable

Inventories and biological assets

Prepald expenses and ather accounts
receivable

Accounts payabla
Ralated parties payable

Other taxes payable end other accruals

Labeor obligations, net

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating
activities to next page

Years ended December 31,

%

2004 2010 2011
Tag440 5 1,577,951 5 1,180,685
E67T, 354 47,264 749,334
- - (294, 585)
291,455 50,945 [155,5032)

(7E5,398) {1,625] 2,589
- - 34,500

8E,1B5 148,571 46,671
46,5632 47, BES 43,427

1,106,723 2,916,075 807,219
[44,359) & {B0,654) 5 {199,177}
774,541 (945) [877,238)

{234} 16,265 (67, 166)

2058 181,696] 565,434
17,377 {6, 740] 17,670
109,168 {8, 04E) [242,673)
(46,452} {18, 745] {35,201

1424022 3 2,719,508 5 68,858
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Cash flows prowided by [used in)
operating activities from previous page

INVESTING ACTINITIES:

Acquisition of proparty, plant and
Equiprrent

PFroceeds from sale of property, plant and
Equiprment

Rastricted cash

Investrnent securities

Business acquisition

COthar assats

Cash flows used in investing activities

FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of nates payable ta

Banks

Repayment of long-term debt and notes
payable

Cash dividends paid

Dividends paid te non-cantrolling interest
Additional pald-in caphtal

Cash flows provided by |used in)
financing actleities

Translation effect of forelgn subsldiary

ket increase (decrease) in cash and
aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of year

Cash and cash eguivalents at and of year

Supplemental disdosure of cash flows information:

Interest paid during the pear
Payrment of valuation effects of
fimancial instrumenits

Incme taxes pald during the vear

Agriculture:

Years ended Decembser 31,

2009 2010 2011

1,424,022 ] 2719508 & 68,858
{9IBE, 750] 5 [SE0,586) (849,334)
15,541 42,179 83,906
215,651 1629) 7.258
316,162 {57,507} (201,373)

- 11,326,741

(650 11,497} [4,589]
{440, 545] 5 [STEOGD) & {2,290,833)

1,044 611 & FI8.855 1,930,541

[7106, 558 (1,005 870) [774,554)

[250,045] (250,082) (299,934

(1,035 {11386} {913}
1,075 15,167} {209)

57.942 (573,350} 854,896

- 3z, 124

1,071,418 1,568,118 11,334,955]

1,319,439 2,350,857 3 958,975

2,390,857 5 3,958 975 2,524,000

‘Years ended December 31,

2000 2040 2011
190,197 b [7as19y % {60,809
177,740 - -

[107,15E] 5 [(495846) 5 {121,982)

The Company follows the reguirements of the MexFRS bulletin E-1, Agricuiture, which establishes the
rules for recognizing, valuing, presenting and disclosing biological assets and agricultural products.

This bulketin establishes that biological assets and the agricultural products (the latter at the time of their
harvasting} are to be valued at their fair value, net of estimated costs at point of sale. Also, the bulletin
establishes that whenever the fair value cannot be determined in a reliable, verifiable and objective
manner, the assets are to be valued at thelr preduction cost, net of accurmulated impairment, If any,



In accordance wath L5, GAAP, under FASE ASC 905 Topic “Agricuiture”, sub-togic 330 Inventory biological
assets and agricultural produects are to be valued at cost. Acoordingly, the reconaliation between MexFRS
and L% GAAP income for 2008, 2000 and 2011 incdudes a reversal of the unrealized gain (loss) on
valuation of biological assets and agricultural products at fair value, which shows an increases of 57,214
and increases of 332,016 and a decrease of (32,553), respectively.

Capitalized interest:

Under MexFRS O-6 starting January 1, 2007, capitalized interest is comprehensively measured in order to
include: {ij the interest expense, plus (i) any foregn exchange fluctuations, and less {iii} the related
manetary position result, which was applicable until December 31, 2007, because of the adoption of the
new MexFRS B-10 that came into effect on lanuary 1, 2008, Although the Company adopted the policy of
capitalizing the comprehensive result of financng on assets under constrection, as a result of MexFRS D-6,
during 2009, 2010 and 2011, there were no constrection projects identified with interest expense related
to debt, as described in Mote 2).

Under U5, GAAP, interest expense incurred during the gualifying construction persod must be considered
as an additional cost of qualifying constructed assets to be capitalized In property, plant and equipment
and depreciated owver the lives of the related assets. The amount of the capitalized interest for U5, GAAP
purposes was determined by applying the weighted average interest rate of financing. During 2009, 2010
and 2011, there were no qualifying construction projects,

Deferred income tax and deferred employee statutory profit shaning:

Under MexFRS, the Company determines deferred income taxes in a manner sirmilar to LS, GAAP, using
the assat and liability method, by applying the enacted statutory income tax rate. Deferred tax assets and
liakvilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and for
operating loss and tax credit carry forewards, The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognized in results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. For MexFRS
presentation purposes, deferred tax assets and liabilities are long-term items, while under L5 GAAPR,
deferred tax assets and labilities should be classified as short-term or long-term items depending on the
nature of the caption that gives rise to such deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Under LL5, GAAP, as of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2011, the long term deferred tax Hability is 51,825,344
and 2,132,907 respectively. Short term deferred tax liability is 3526,395% and 608,009 as of December
31, 20100 and 2011, respectiveby.

The deferred tax adjustment incleded in the net income and stockholders” equity reconciliations includes
the effect of deferred taxes on all L5, GAAF adjustments reflected in the reconciliation from MexFRS to
U5 GAAR. Under L5 GAAP, the Company recognizes a deferred tax liability associated with profils
originated during the simplified regime that have not pald income tax previcusly, but would be subject to
taxation upon future distributions under the Mexican tax law. Due to the accounting change under
MexFRS in 2009, this concept generates a reconciling differance to U5, GAAP. The deferred tax liability
under this concept amounted 309,106 and 5270,029 as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

The Company is required to pay Employes Statutory Profit Sharing (E5P%) in accordance with Mexican
labor law. In accordance with MexFRS D-3 "Employee Benefits”, deferred ESPS is determined under the
asset and Nabdlity method at the statutory rate of 10%. This methodology is similar to the approeach under
FASE ASC Topic 740 “lncome Toxes™ (SFAS 109 Accounting for incowme Taxes).

The Company's reconciliations between MexFRS and LL5, GAAP do not inclede deferred ESPS since there
is no amount to be booked,
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Under MexFRS, current ESPS is recorded within other expenses, net, Under LL5, GAAP, E5P5 is classified as
selling, general and administrative expenses,

Severance indemnities

MexFRS D-3 "Labor Obligations” requires among othar things, that employee benefits should be dassified
in four main categories; direct short-term and long term, termination and post-employment benefits,
MesFRS D-3 establishes a maximum five-year period for amortizing unrecognized f'unamortized items
while actuarial gains or loszes may be recognized as earned or incurred. Unlike termination benefits, post-
employment benefit actuarial gains or losses may b2 immediately recognized in results of operations or
amaortized over the expected service life of the employees,

Under .5 GAAP, FASE ASC Topic 712 “"Compensetion-Non retirement Post empiopment Benefits”
required that a llability for certain termination benefits provided under an ongeing benefit arrangement
such as statutorly mandated severance indemnities should be recognized in results of operations when
the employers’ obligations relates to rendered services, the likelihood of future settlement is probable
and the liability can be reasonably estimated. Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the
amounts of past service cost ameortized under MexFRS was 54,828, 54,828 and 54,667, respectively, Such
amounts have been reversed for U5 GAAP since these amounts had been already recognized in the
results of operations under U5, GAAP. These amounts were included in the U5, GAAPR reconcliation of
nel income and equity.

FASE ASC Topic T15 “Compensation-Retirement Benefits™

Under MexFRS -3, companies must amortize transition obligations/benefits, over a maximum period of 3
years, This requirement has resulted In an increase in net periodic pension cost under MexFRS which s
being reversed for US GAAP purposes.

FASE ASC Topic 715 “Compensotion-Retirement Benefits”, requires companies to recognize the funded or
unfunded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans as & net asset or liability and
to recognize changes in that funded or unfunded status in the year in which the changes occur through
accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent those changes are induded in the net pernodic
cost, The funded status reported on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 under
FASE ASC Topic 715 "Compensation-Retirement Benefits” was measured as the difference between the
fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation on a plan-by-plan basis,



The components of the plan funded status that is reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as of

December 31, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

10
Peision sanlortty Severance Total
plan premiurm
Prajected benefit abligation 229 609 B3,ETL 5 57,286 5 370,766
Market value af plan assets [256,382) = - (356, 382)
(Funded] unfunded defined
benafit plan [assat) liahility [26,773) B3 .ETL 5 57,286 ) 114,384
2011
Pepsion Eenhjnhl
plan premiurm Sawarance Total
Prajected benafit abligatisn 203,164 76,382 & B0 & 240,571
pdarket value of plan assets [ 250,855) = = [250,855)
(Funded] unfunded definad
benefit plan (asset) liakility 4 [47691) 76,382 5 61,025 L3 89,716

The asset allocations of the Company's pension benehits as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 measurement
dates were as follows:

Pension benefits {Level 2)

Aaget category: 2010 2011
Debt securities 5 256,382 5 250,855
Total 3 256,382 ¢ 250,855

Goodwill:
Beginning lanuary 1, 2005, due to the adoption of MexFRS B-7, goodwill is no longer amortized, but rather
is subject to annual impairment test, and also in interim periods when impairment indicators are noted.

For LL5, GAAP purposes, geodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually in accordance with the
provisions of FA%E ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other”. Up to Decernber 31, 3004, the
Company recognized an accumulated effect (increase in equity] of 558,716 due to the reversal of
amartization of goodwill recognized under MexFRS restoring the goodwill amount in order to comply
with LIS, GAAP, The goodwill impairment test i a two-step test, Under the first step, the falr value of the
reporting unit is compared with its carrying value (including goodwill}. I the fair value of the reporting
unit i less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting wnit and
the enterprise must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement), Under step two, an
impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill owver
the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the
fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation and the residual fair
value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reperting unit goodwlll. Fair value of the
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds its carrying value, step two does not need to be performed.
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The Company performs its annual impairment review of goodwill at December 31, and when a triggering
event occurs bebween annual impairment tests. [n 30059, 20010 and 2011, no triggering events ocourred
and the annual impairment test did not reflect any impalrment concern,

Reporting comprehensive incame:

For W5 GAAP reconciliation purposes, the Company has adopted the FASBE ASC Topic 220
“Comprebensive Income”, which establishes rules for reporting and disclosure of comprehensive income
and its components. Comprehensive income consists of current year net (loss) income plus (less) the
change in stockholders' equity resulting from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-
owmner sources, For the 2009, 2010 and 2011 frscal vears the components of comprehensive income are
the net income, and labor obligation under FASB ASC Tople 715 “Compensation-Retirement Benefits” net
of taxes. In addition, for the 2011 fiscal year there & a translation effect of foreign subsidiary as part of
the comprehensive income. Comprehensive income effects and amounts under US GAAP are disclosed in
the consolidated statements of stockholder s equity in accordance with US GAAP,

Impairment of long-lived ossets:

Under US GAAP, an impairment test on long-lived assets reguires a two-step process to determine the
amount of any Impairment loss to be recognized when events and circumstances indicated that the
carrying armount may not be recoverable. The first st2p of this test requires the determination of whether
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is recoverable through the sum of the undiscounted cash
flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset (asset group), The second step
requires the determination of the amount of impairment loss to be recognized by comparing the carrying
amount of the asset (asset group) to its fair value. Mexican FRS does not require a two-step impairment
evaluation process for long-lived assets but rather, a direct comparison is made between the recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sale] and carrying value. Since there were no
impairment indicators or triggering events, no impairment losses on long-lived assets have been recorded
in 2004, 2010 and 2011,

Valuation and Qualifying accournts:
HAccount balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted
and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Write-off's for 2008, 2000 and 2011 were as follows:

Businass
Balance at Achuisit on Charged ta Balance
beginning oK cost and at end of
af period Industries) BApENSES Deductions periad
Allowance for
doubitful
accounts 2011 5 32,990 5 B¥9 5 15,298 5 [lﬂ,ﬂﬁl}:l 3 38,537
pras) O a5 . % 18,743 5 [15.554) & 32,990
pu o - 16320 3 4 12647 3 (11,166) 5 29,801

The Company does not have any off-balance-shest credit sxposure related to its customers,

Imvestment Securities

All rights and obligations arising from primary investment securities are recognized on the balance sheet
and the company cassifies its investment securities depending on the purpose for which the securities
were aoguired: (1] held-to-maturity, (i) trading, or (i) avallable for sale, Investments n these instruments
ara reflected on the line-item “current primary investment securities” within cash and investments,
denominated in Mexican peso and U5 dollar,



Trading securities, except held-to-maturity, are recorded at fair value, where peso-denominated debt
securities are taken from the bank statements which are based on the infermation of the local price
vendors, while US-denominated debt securities are based on diversified sources. Held-to-maturity
securities are recorded at amortized cost. Changes in the carrying amounts of trading securities, including
the related costs and yields are included under comprehensive financial results, Gains or losses arsing
from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities [less the corresponding vield) non functional
currency denominated and foreign exchange gain or loss, in the case of equity securities, as well as the
related monetary position gain or loss, as applicable, are reported as a comprehensive income [loss) itern
within stockholders” eguity.

Furthermore, where evidence exists that a financial asset held-to-maturity shall not be recovered in full,
the expected loss {impairment] is recognized in the statement of operations.

Several securitles were no longer traded actively in the financial rmarkets, hence the Company, in
accordance with FASE ASC Topic 320 “investment-Debt ond Equity Secunties”, transferred Commercial
Paper classified as trading securities to the Held-To-Maturity category starting October 1, 2008,

Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Hedging Activities

The Company accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with FASE ASC Topic 815,
“Dherivatives and Hedging”, which requires entities to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets
of labilities in the balance sheet at their respective falr values, For derivatives designated inte qualified
fair value hedging relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through earnings against the
change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or if a qualified cash flow
hedging relationship is designated, the effective portion changes on the fair value of the derivatives are
recoghized n accumulated other comprehensive income, Amounts are reclassified from accurmulated
other comprehensive income into earnings when the hedged item is recognized in earnings affecting the
same revenue of expense item where the hedged item impacts,

The Company enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies, buying and selling options.
Thesa derivatives are not designated as hedging instruments for financial reporting purposes, thus the
changes in their fair values are recorded in earnings each period,

Relative to grain usage, the Company enters into derivative contracts desiznated to hedge firm
commitments not recognized as assets or liabilities in the balance sheet (fair value hedges). However,
derivatives not designated under a hedging relationship or those do not qualify under strict hedge
accounting criteria, are accounted for as trading instrurnents with changes in fair value recorded in
earnings each period. As of Movember 1%, 2011, the Company acquired 0K Industries Inc., and with this
acquisition the Company acquired open positions on grain options listed in CBOT (Chicago Board of
Trade}. The changes in the fair value of these instruments have been abso recorded In earnings each
period since that date.

For all gualifying hedging relationships, the Comgany formally documents the hedging relationship,
including its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument,
the hedged item, the nature of the rick being hedzed, how the hedging instrument's effectivenass in
offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed prospedtively and retrospectively, and a description of the
method of measuring Ineflectiveness.

For derivative instruments that are designated and gualify for a hedging relationship under the fair value
hedge accounting model, the Company recognizes the changes in fair value of the derivative directly in
asarnings each period, as well as the changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk of the hedged
item, that is grain firm commitments (off-balance sheet executory contracts) which latter become
recognized assets (grain inventory),
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The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that the dernative is no
longer effective in offsetting changes in fair value or if the dermvative expires or is sold, terminated, or
sxercised, or if the derivative is no longer designated as a hedging instrument because the management
determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

In all situations in which hedge accounting & discontinued and the dervative Instrument  remains
autstanding, the Company continues to carry the derivative instrument at its fair value on the balance
sheet and recognizes any subsaguent changes in its fair value within current earmings.

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 161, Disclosures aboul Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in Topic 815-10; Dervatives and Hedging = Owerall], which
amends the disclosure reguirements for derivative instruments and hedging actiities,

The Company has implemented fair value hedge relationships with firm commitments as hedged item,
using bought options on grain futures. Hedge accounting for these relationships does require the
recognition of either an asset (gain) or a lability (loss) attributable to the hedged risk {intrinsic changes
onby] on the balance sheet against current earnings where the changes in the fair value hedge derivatives
effects are also recognized and do compensate,

‘When the szame bought options on com grain futures are redesigned as to hedge a portion of
corn/sorghum inventories, once these became recogiized assets, the changes in these inventory's portion
fair values adpuest the carrying value of such grain invantories against current earnings, where the changes
in fair value of the designated derivatives offset in current earnings these decreases in the inventories’ fair
value. The cash flow statement is affected when the derivatives’ cash flow from early exercises or those
that end up with intrinsic value are collected from ASERCA.

Dwuring 2011, the Company took long positions in 6,767 put option contracts on corn futures listed in the
CBOT {each conveys 5,000 bushels), which gave the right to the Company for selling 859,477 metric tons
at certain strike price 5493 of thess put option contracts reached their maturity during 2011 and
provided to the Company a realized gain at corresgondent expirations of 51.9 millions of dollars which
was recognized in current earmings into cost of goods sold.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Hedging Activities:

&z of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company used commodity derivatives to manage its exposure to
commaodity prices, and foreign exchange rate derivatives, The Company does not enter into derivative
instruments for any purpose other than hedging its exposure to these commodity prices and foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, however, derivatives that did not gualify for hedge accounting were
accounted as trading Instruments, By the end of 2003 and amended in 2010, the Company did establish a
Corporate Policy associated to the use of foreign exdhange derivatives, where instruments entered in the
amount of up to 30 Million USD are approved by the Risk Committee, while entering into an amount
higher than this amount does require Board's approval,

By using derivative financial instruments to hedga exposures to changes in commodity prices and
exchange rate fluctuations, the Company exposes ilself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the
fallure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract, When the fair value of a
derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Company, which creates credit risk for the
Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty
and, therefore, the Company is not exposed to the counterparty's credit risk in those circumstances.
Pasitive fair value derlvatives are carried as financal assets on the balance sheet, while negative fair
values are presented as current liabilities on the balance sheet.



The Company maintains a commodity-price-risk management strategy that uses dernative instruments to
minimize significant, unanticipated earnings fluctuations caused by commodity-price volatility. The
manufacturing of the Company's products requires a significant wolume of grain, Price fluctuations in
grain cause market values of grain inventory to differ from its cost and cause the actual purchase price of
the grain to differ from the anticipated price.

As of Decemnber 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has pericdically entered into grain futures and options
on futures (FEO) contracts traded at the CBOT through Mew Edge, and lefferies Bache a FEO brokers on
behalf of the Company, to economically hedge a porlion of its anticipated purchases of grains, against the
risk associated with fluctuations in market prices. These FAO contracts were not designated as hedges;
thus, changes in fair value were recognized directly in earnings each perod.

&lso, the Company has entered into options on fulures of corn, as to hedge the downward changes in the
pricas of grains, com and sorghum, when the pricing of these are fixed through firm commitments, based
on a Mexican Government sponsored program named “Agricultura por Contrato” managed by ASERCA
(Apovos v Servicios a la Comercializacion Agropecaarial, a governmental entity ascribed to Mexico's
Secretary of Farming and Agriculture [SAGARPA, Secretarla de Agricultura, Ganaderia, Desarrollo Rural,
Pesca y Alimentacion). This program basically represents a subsidy to the Company, through which, a
commaodities-ralated price hedging program scheme is offered to both farmers and agro-business entities
such as the Company, The ASERCA pregram had twe participating medalities: during 2011 for which the
Company applied (i) 0% of the payment of the option's premium and 100% of the benefit with a 6le:
discount on the amount of the initial premium, or (i) 50% of the payment of the option’s premium, and
100%: of the benefit in the payment of the premivm of the bought options with a 38% discount on the
amaunt of the initial premium.

Alsa, in this program ASERCA plays the role of the intermediary between the Company and the CBOT, but
stands as the counterparty, These are put options on fulures listed at the CBOT and are designated as fair
value hedging relationships. The changes in the fair value of these options and the fair value of the
hedged item {firm commitments) are recognized in earnings. Changes in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, that were recognized within the consolidated balanoe sheet as either an
asset or lability from the grain firm commitment’s valuation or as an adjustment to the carrying value of
the inventory when the edged item is the grain inventory during the hedging relationship, where the firm
commitment’s fair value effects are subsequently reclassified as hedge adjustments to cost of goods sald
when the related inventory layer affect earnings as cost of goods sokd,

#As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the Company had entered into foreign currency exchange rate
derivatives, traded with the following financal institutions as of December 31, 2010: UES Grouwp and
santander (México) and as of December 31, 2011: UBS Group Morgan Stanley and Morgan Stanley, 5. &,
These structured derivatives were not designated in a hedging relationship, hence changes in the fair
value for these instruments were recognized in earnings each pericd, Likewise, the Company enterad into
over-the-counter (OTC) grain derivatives with Carglll Incorporated and exchange traded derivatives
through, New Edge and lefferies Bache which were not designated as hedges and conseguently, the
changes in their fair values were also recognized in earnings each period.

&5 of Decemnber 31, 2010 and 2011, the Company had not established any current hedging relationship
under the cash flow hedge model; hence there is no derivatives effect in other comprehensive income as
of these dates.

Fair Value Measurements and the Falr Value Option of Financlal Instruments:
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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When feasible, the Company uses guoted market prices to determine fair values, Where quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is internally derived based upon valuation methodologies with
respect to the amount and timing of future cash flows and estimated discount rates adjusted for both
counterparty and entity's own risk. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market
data to develop estimates of fair value, so the estimates including both counterparty and entity’s own risk
adjustment are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized or would be paid in a
current market exchange, but those are proxy estimates, The effect of using different market assumptions
or estimation methodologies could be material to the estimated fair wvalues. Fair value information
presented herein is based on information available as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, Fair values vary
from pericd to pericd based on changes in a wide range of risk factors, including interest rates, credit
quality, and market perceptions of value and as existing assets and liabilities run off and new transactions
are entered into,

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:

Cash, trode gocounts recervalle, other oocount receholies, other gssets (nonderivatives), frode accounts
payatie, due to afiioted company, ond ocorued expanses (nonderivativesk The carrying amounts, at face
value or cost plus accrued interest, reported in the consolidated balance sheets equal or approximate fair
values, due to the short maturity of these instrurments,

Investiment securities: The Company dassifies its investment securities depending on the purpose for
which the securities were acgquired, its holding perod obpective and the Company’s ability to held them
untll maturity as either: (i) trading, (i} held-te-maturity or (ili] avallable for sale, Trading securities and
available for =zale securities are recognized at fair value, determined by wsing quoted market prices
multiplied by the quantity held when quoted market prices are availabbe, Held-to-maturity securities are
reported at amaortized cost,

Futures and Options on Futures of Groins: Exchange isted futures and options on futures are valued using
the dlosing (settlement) price observed at the CBOT on the last business day of the year.

Currency exchonge rote options: The fair value of these over-the-counter options is determined using
option pricing models that value the potential for tha option to become “in the money” through changes
in currency exchange rate prices during the remaining term of the derivative, Inputs to that option pricing
model reflect abservable market data, including implied vaolatility determined by reference to exchange
traded options on futures.

Nete payables to banks, long and shovt term debt: The fair value of the Cormpany's long-term debt is
measured using quoted offered-side prices when quoted market prices are available. If quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is determined by discounting the future cash flows of each
instrument at rates that reflect, among other things, market Interest rates and the Company’s credit
standing. For long-term debt measurements, where there are not rates currently ahsersable in publicly
traded debt markets of similar terms to companies with comparable credit, the Company uses market
interest rates and adjusts that rate for all necessary risks, incleding its own credit risk. In determining an
appropriate spread to reflect its credit standing, the Company considers credit default swap spreads,
bond yields of other long-term debt offered by the Company, and interest rates currently offered to the
Company for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities by the Company’s bankers as wall as
other banks that regularly compete to provide financing to the Company.

In accordance to FASE ASC Topic 825 "Fnancial fnstruments™ (5FAS 107 Disclosures obout Foir Value of
Finonoial Instriments), the following table presents both the carrying and estimated fair value of assets
and liabilities considered financial instruments undar this Statement. Others items like short and long
term debt not carried and recognized ariginally at fair value are also presented in the table at their fair



value, The disclosure excludes leases, pension and benefit obligations, as well as insurance policy reserve.
Also as reguired, the disclosures excludes the effect of taxes, any premium or discount that could result
from offering for zale at one time the entire holdings of a particular instrument, excess fair value
associated with deposit with no fixed maturity and other expenses that would be incurred in a market
transaction,

According to the FASE ASC Topic 825, certain items are excluded from this table, such as receivables and
payables that arises from the ordinary course of business.

2010 2001

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount amaount
Cash & 513,076 5 513,076 5 472,318 5 472,318
Investment Securities 3,655,224 306524

7 7 2,565,661 2,565,661

Short term debt {139.867) [163,405) (1,452,993) (1,477,537)
Long term debt {507,053 [d66,930]) (384,370) {363,146)

Fair Value Hierarchy:

FASE ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Meoswrements and Disclosures” defines fair value as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, FASBE ASC Teple B20 also establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value maasurements.

The Company adopted FASE ASC Topic 320 on January 1, 2008 for fair value measurements of financial
assets and financial labilities and for falr value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial staternents on a recurring basis. On Jlanuary 1, 2004, the Company
adopted the provisions of FASE ASC Topic 820 for fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial labilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair valee in the financal statements on a
nonrecurring basis, FASE ASC Tople 830 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techmigues used to measure fair value, The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to measurements invelving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements), The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities that
the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date. Since valuations are based on
guoted prices that are readily and regularly avaiable in an active market, valuation of these products
does not entall a significant degree of judgrment.

Lewvel 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or lability, either directly or indirectly. Assets and labilities utilizing Level 2 inputs include
investment securities that are not actively traded and derivative contracts.

Leviel 3 inputs for the asset or liability are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls iz bazed on the
lovvest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
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The hierarchy reguires the wse of observable market data when available. In the case of investment
securities, the instruments are classified in Level 2. The CBOT derivatives (counterparties Mew Edge and
lefferies Bache] are classified in Level 1. Currency options and OTC grain dervatives (Cargill and ASERCA)
are classified in Level 2.

The following fair valwe hierarchy table presents assets and labilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at December 31, 2010 and 2011 (including only items that are required to be measured at
fair value, items for which the fair value option has be elected, are not presented due that the Company
did not elect the Fair Value Option):

Juoted prices Significant
in active athar Significant
Total assetf rrarkets far abservable Unabservable
liabilitias at identical assats inputs Inputs
At December 31, 2010 Falr Value fLevel 1) (Level 2] (Level 3]
Asats:
Trading Securlties 5 3,655,247 - 3,655,247
Derivative instrumants 3,841 3,573 268
Total 5 3,855 088 3,573 3,855.515
Lisbilities:
Derivative instruments 3 (SBE] 1282] [2BE]
Ouoted prices
In active Significant
markets for other Significant
Total assetf dentical ohservable Uniobserva ble
limbilities at BEdEls inpats Inpats
At Decamber 31, 2011 Fair Valug {Laval 1} [Level 2) iLevel 3)
fggats:
Trading Securities 5 1,565 661 - 2,565,661
Derivative instrumants 10,975 FED 10,21%
Tatal 5 2,576 636 TED 2,575,877
Lisbilities:
Derivative instruments [TEE] | TEE]

Tatal ) [7EE] 176E|




Fair Value Option

FASE ASC Topic 825-10 provides entities with an option to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. Under ASC Topic 82510, unrealized gains and losses on iterns for which
the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings at each reporting period. This fair value
option must be applied on an instrument-by-instrument basis with changes in fair value reported in
earnings. After initial adoption, the election can be made at the acquisition of an eligible financlal asset,
financial liability, or firm commitment or when certain specified reconsideration events occur. The fair
value election may not be revoked once an election is made. The adoption of FASE ASC Topic 825-10 did
not have an impact to the Company's financal positian and results of oparations, as the Company did not
elect the falr value option for eligible iterms.

Income toxes

a) Tax rate reconciliation:

Until Becember 31, 2010, all income before income t&x and related income tax expense [benafit) are from
Mexican sources, &s it is mentioned in note 1 "Significant transaction” to the conzolidated financial
statements, on Novermnber 1, 2011 the Company acquired 100% of the voting stock of OK Industries Inc,,
entity located in the United States of America.

Pre-tax Income from demestic and forelgn operation: 5 comprised as fiollow:

2009 10 11
Pre-tax Income from doemestic operations 5 1,193,751 2,524, T46 122,283
Pre-tax income from foreign operations - - 972,486
Taotal 5 1,193,751 2,524 746 1,094,789

Income tax (IT) expense (benefit) attributable to income before income tax differed from the amounts
computed by applying the Mexican statutory rate of 19% for 2009 and 21% for 2000 and 2011,
respectively, to income before income tax, as a resull of the iems shown in the following page:

2004 200 2011
Computed *expected” tax |benefit)
PR 5 iR A1 530197 119,902
InCreass (decrease) in incame taxes
ressulting Trom
EMects of mflation, net |30.506) |66,504) [71,1%49)
Non-deductible cupenses q.5 5,093 3,411
Adjustment to deferred tas assets and
liabdlities far enactad changes in
tan laws and rates 192,514
Effect of companies outside simplified
regime 38,74 31,56kL1 10,005
Change in the valuation
allrwance af
deterred tas assets B, 130 17,164 (#2,312)
[Resersal) sddition ol delerred Lax
liability refated to simplfied regime [9,273) 34,153 [39,077)
Gain resulting froem Bargain Purchasa - - (385, 739)
Crkser, net |15.078) 17.908] (A1)

IT experse | benedit] ] 5,311 SAG, M5 (&5, %16)




Income tax expense (benefit] for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010, 2011 is comprised as follows:

2009 2010 2011
Current tax 5 103,853 § 495846 § 69,586
Deferred tax 291,458 50,949 [155,502)

3 395,311 5 546795 § [85,918)

Deferred tax benefit for the year ended December 21, 2011, includes an amount of (5123,723) related to
the benefit of tax loss carryforwards.

b) Deferred income tax-
Based on the financial propections of taxable income, the Company estimated that it will pay income
tax (IT} in future years; therefore, deferred income tax effects as of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2011
have bean accounted for reflecting the IT basis,

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets
and liabllities at December 31, 2000 and 2011, are presented below:

2010 2011

Deferred tax assets:
Accounts payahbla 4 493,645 649,678
Labor obligations 29,785 42,949
ESPS pavable 11,311 5,002
Effects on dervative financial instruments 1635
Others 1,006 .
fecoverable AT 4,854 5,044
Tax loss carryforwards 17,508 141,421

Total gross deferred tax assats 554,939 248,094
Less valuation allowance 53,309 20,997

Met deferred tax assets S06,630 827,087
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories 227,540 1,0:0, 562
Accounts receivable 190,082 204,213
PFroperty, plant and eguipment, net 1,515,271 2,031, 296
Cther deductions 16,370 20,211
Effects on dervative financial instruments = 1,702
Additienal deferred income tax Nability related to

simplified regime A0, 106 210,029

Total deferred tax liakilities 2,858 369 3,568,013

Net deferred tax liability 4 2,351,738 2,740,916




The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of Januvary 1, 2010 and 2011 amounted to 536,145 and
553,309 respectively. The net change in the total vauation allowance for the vears ended December 31,
2010 and 2011, was an increase of 17,164 and a decrease of 5{32,312), respectively. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The valuation allowance at December 31,
2011 is related to cover assel tax, and part of labor chligations that, in the judgment of management, are
not more likely that not to be realized, The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax labilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment

Taxable income of the Company on a consolidated basis for the year ended December 31, 20011 was
£1,004,770, Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections Tor future taxable income
aver the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management belisves it is more likely
tham not that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences, net of the existing
valuation allowance at December 31, 2011, The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable,
however, could be reduced in the near future if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward period are reduced.

The Company has not accounted for deferred incorre taxes on the temporary differences resulting from
investments in subsidiaries since it meets the critefa provided by A5C 740 “Income taxes” (Accounting
Principles Board Opinion 23 (&PB 23}). The Company considers these investments to be indefinitely held.
& deferred tax liability will be recognized once the Company expects to dispose such investments, and as
long as the sale price 15 higher than the tax cost of such Investments, The taxable temporary difference
related to such investments amounts approximately to 51,044,000, and it is no practicable to compute
the unrecognized deferred tax lability,

Accounting for uncertainty in income toxes:

FASE Interpretation No., 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in fncome Toaxes, on interpretabion of Statement of
Finamcial Accounting Standards No, J097 (included in FASBE ASC Tople 740 lncome taxes — Overall] (FIN 48]
requires that an entity recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effect of income tax
positions, only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained upon examination, based on
the technical merits of the position, Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount
that is greater than 0% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in
the period in which the change in judgment ocours. The Company's accounting policy is to accrue interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, ifand when reguired, as a component of other income
{expense], in the consalidated statements of operations,

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Company did not have any unrecognized tax
benefits and thus ne interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits were recorded. In
addition, the Company does not expect that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change
significantly within the next 12 months. The income tax returns of the Company and its Mexican
subsidiaries remain subpect to examination by the Mexican tax authorities for the tax years beginning in
2007, In regards to the US subsidiaries the income tax returns for the tax years beginning in 2007 remaln
subject to examination by the US tax autharities.

Business and credit concentrations:
The Company's products are sold to a large number of customers without significant concentration with
any of them; likewise, there is no significant supplier concentration.
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Summary of adjustments to reconcile MexFRS and U5 GAAP:

The following is a summary of net income adjusted to take into account certain material differences
between MexFRS and LS, GAAP:

Years ended Decamber 31,
20089 2010 2011

Met Income & reported under

PexFAS g 802,045 4 1,986,326 £ 159,138
Adjustments to reconcile net incorma o

U5 GAAP:
Biological assats and agricuttural

products valugtion at fair value 7214 32016 |2,558)
Cegraciation of capitalized interest (4,724 [4,724) {4,724)
Saverance cost 4518 4,828 4,667
Pensions plan and Seniority Premium 1882 2,885 2,758
Bargaln purchase - - ¥4, 585
Dieferred incormes tax on LIS GA&P

adjustments 1,774 (9,227 6,308
Fair walue eredit valuetion adjustrrent

affect (31,852] - -
Additional defarred income tax liability

ralated to simplifiad regime e (34,153) 38,077
Depraclation of falr values of property,
plant and equipment of OK Industries,
Inc. - - {18 546)
Less: nan-contralling interest incormse (11,445 (2,976 {2,097}
Met controlling interest income

under L5, GAAP ] JEES55 5 1,574,575 % 1178588
Other comprehansive income, net of 4465 3,510
(= BE 198
Comprahensiva income 791 464 1,578,685 1,264,786
Weighted average number of shares

autstanding |thousands) S00.000 S00,000 00,000
Met income per basic and diluted

shara 5 1.31 5 329 5 Z.11

Classificotion differences:

There are certain other classification differences between MexFRS and U5, GAAR, which are as follows:

- Effective beginning Januvary 1, 2011, with retrospective application; under Mex FRS, advances for
purchase of inventories (current assets) or aroperty, plant and equiprment and intangible assets
inon-current assets), among others, must be reported under prepayments provided the benefits
and risks inherent in the assets to be acquired or the services to be received have not yet been
transferred to the entity. Furthermore, prepaid expenses must be reported based on the nature
of the itern to be acquired, either under current assets or non-current assets, Under US GAAP,
advances for purchaze of inventory, or property plant and eguipment are still recorded as
inventary or property plant and eguipment, respectivehy.

- Employes statutory profit sharing expenses are cdassified as other expenses under MaxFRS and
as selling, general and administrative expenses under L5, GAAP.

= Tax incentlves for 2009 are presented as other income under MexFRS and as a reduction of
selling, general and administrative expenses under L5, GAAP. There were no tax incentivas in
2010 and 2011



The reconciliation of the controlling interest between bMexFRS and U5, GAAP is as follows:

Controlling intarast’ equity as reported under bMexFRS
Adjustments to reconcile controlling interest” squity to
L5 GAAR:

Bislogical assets and agricultural praducts valuation at fair alue
Accumulated differences betweaen the financing cost

capitalized for MexFRS and L5, GAAP purposes
Accumulated depreciation on capitalized interest

Savarance cost

Fension plan and Seniority Pramium

Reversal of accumulated amortization of goodwlll

Deferred Income taxes on U5 GAAP adjustrments

Additional deferred income tax liability related to simplified
regirma

Translation effect of foreign subsidiary

Depreclation of falr value of property, plant and eguipmen’ of 0K
Industries, Inc.

Bargain purchass

Cantralling interest’ equity as reported under U5 GRAP

5

Years ended December 31

00 011
5 18,316,355 & 16,208,897
(72,512} {75,070}
o4 481 94 481
(33 726) {38, 450)
18,714} {4,048)
0,787 55,471
58,716 58,716
{13,983} {17,044}
(309, 1086) (270,029)
. 27,536
- {18,546}
. oo 585
16,052 798 % 17,017 449

The effects of the above adjustments do not have any impact on non-controlling interast,
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